AGENDA

REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE SANTA FE SPRINGS
HOUSING SUCCESSOR
SUCCESSOR AGENCY

AND CITY COUNCIL

September 10, 2020
6:00 P.M.

VIA TELECONFERENCE

Annette Rodriguez, Councilmember
Juanita Trujillo, Councilmember
Joe Angel Zamora, Councilmember
John M. Mora, Mayor Pro Tem
William K. Rounds, Mayor

****GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20****
**REGARDING CORONAVIRUS COVID-19**

On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom proclaimed a State of Emergency to exist in
California as a result of the threat of COVID-19. The Governor has issued Executive
Orders that temporarily suspend requirements of the Brown Act, including allowing the
City Council to hold public meetings via teleconferencing and to make public meetings
accessible telephonically or otherwise electronically to all members of the public. Please
be advised that, until further notice, City Council meetings will be held by teleconference.
City Hall, including Council Chambers, is closed to the public.

You may attend the City Council meeting telephonically or electronically using the
following means:

Electronically using Zoom: Go to Zoom.us and click on “Join A Meeting” or use the
following
link:https://zoom.us/{/521620472?pwd=U3cyK1RuKzY1ekVGZFdKQXNZVzh4Z7z09
Zoom Meeting ID: 521620472 Password: 659847

Telephonically: Dial: 888-475-4499 Meeting ID: 521620472

Public Participation: You may submit public comments in writing by sending them to the
City Clerk at cityclerk@santafesprings.org. If you attend the meeting by telephone, you
must submit a public comment in writing to be heard. To ensure that they are received for
the meeting, please submit your written comments prior to 4:00 p.m. on the day of the
City Council meeting. You may also contact the City Clerk’s Office at (562) 868-0511 ext.
7314.




City of Santa Fe Springs
Regular Meetings September 10, 2020

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

Annette Rodriguez, Councilmember
Juanita Trujillo, Councilmember
Joe Angel Zamora, Councilmember
John M. Mora, Mayor Pro Tem
William K. Rounds, Mayor

PUBLIC COMMENTS This is the time when comments may be made by citizens on
matters under the jurisdiction of the City Council, on the agenda and not on the agenda.
Each citizen is limited to three (3) minutes.

HOUSING SUCCESSOR

CONSENT AGENDA

Consent Agenda items are considered routine matters which may be enacted by one motion and
vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately by the Housing
Successor.

Minutes of the August 13, 2020 Housing Successor Meeting (City Clerk)
Recommendation:
e Approve the minutes as submitted.

SUCCESSOR AGENCY

CONSENT AGENDA

Consent Agenda items are considered routine matters which may be enacted by one motion and
vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately by the
Successor Agency.

Minutes of the August 13, 2020 Successor Agency Meeting (City Clerk)
Recommendation:
e Approve the minutes as submitted.

CITY COUNCIL

CONSENT AGENDA

Consent Agenda items are considered routine matters which may be enacted by one motion and
vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately by the City
Council.

Minutes of the August 13, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting (City Clerk)
Recommendation:
e Approve the minutes as submitted.

NEW BUSINESS

First Amendment to Site Lease with Option between the City of Santa Fe Springs and PTI
US Towers Il, LLC, A Delaware Limited Liability Company, as Ultimate Successor in
Interest to T-Mobile West Corporation ( Planning)

2




10.

11.

12.

13.

City of Santa Fe Springs

Regular Meetings September 10, 2020

Recommendation:

e Approve the First Amendment to Site Lease with Option between the City
of Santa Fe Springs and PTI US Towers Il, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, as ultimate successor in interest to T-Mobile West Corporation;
and

¢ Authorize the Mayor to execute the First Amendment.

Authorize the Purchase of Self-Checkout Machines from Bibliotheca by Piggybacking off
of Sourcewell Cooperative Contract No. 081419-SHI
Recommendation:
e Authorize the purchase of self-checkout machines from Bibliotheca by
piggybacking off of Sourcewell cooperative contract No. 081419-SHI and;
e Authorize the Director of Purchasing Services to issue a purchase order
in the amount of $28,863.31 for this transaction.

Resolution No. 9692 — Request for Parking Restriction along Gannet Street between
Radburn Avenue and Bonavista Avenue
Recommendation:

e Adopt Resolution No. 9692 to prohibit the parking and stopping of
vehicles on the west/south side of Gannet Street from a point 200 feet
north of Radburn Avenue to Bonavista Avenue and implement a tow-
away zone within the same limits for vehicles that violate the restriction.

On-Call Professional Engineering Services Contract Extension — Approve Extension for
Six Existing Contracts
Recommendation:
e Approve Contract Amendments for each of the following six (6) On-Call
Engineering Firms to extend the term of each Agreement to June 30,
2021; and
e Authorize the Mayor to execute Contract Amendment Number Three for
each of the On-Call Engineering Firms.

Los Nietos Road Street Improvements — Award of Contract
Recommendation:
e Accept the bids; and
e Award a contract to All American Asphalt of Corona, California, in the
amount of $2,634,444.00.

Resolution No. 9693 — Updating the List of Designated Employees Required to File a
Conflict of Interest Form (City Clerk)
Recommendation:
e Adopt Resolution No. 9693, updating the list of designated employees
required to file a conflict of interest form.

Consideration of Investigation Report and Possible Corrective Action Regarding Council
Member Joe Angel Zamora's November 11, 2019 Conduct with Respect to a Fire

3







FOR ITEM NO. 4
PLEASE SEE ITEM NO. 6



FOR ITEM NO. 5
PLEASE SEE ITEM NO. 6




ITEM NO. 6






Minutes of the August 13, 2020 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings

6.

CITY COUNCIL

CONSENT AGENDA

a. Minutes of the June 11, 2020 Reqular City Council Meeting (City Clerk)

Recommendation:
e Approve the minutes as submitted.

. General Motion to Waive Full Reading and Read Ordinance by Title Only Pursuant

to California Government Code Section 36934 (City Clerk)
Recommendation:
e Approve a general motion to waive full reading and read Ordinance titles
only, pursuant to California Government Code Section 36934.

. Second Reading of Ordinance No. 1098 - Amending Chapter 110 (Regulation of

Certain Businesses) Of Title Xl (Business Requlations) and Chapter 130 (General
Provisions) Of Title XllI (General Offenses) Of the Santa Fe Springs Municipal
Code to Establish A Sidewalk Vending Program (Police Services)
Recommendation:
e Adopt Ordinance No. 1098 regarding the establishment of a sidewalk
vending program.

. Second Reading - Ordinance No. 1113 - Granting a Franchise to Park Water

Company for Maintenance and Operation of Pipelines in City Streets (Public

Works)

Recommendation:
e Adopt Ordinance No. 1113, granting a franchise to Park Water Company
for Maintenance and Operation of Pipelines in City Streets.

. Quarterly Treasurer’s Report of Investments for the Quarter Ended, June 30, 2020

(Finance)

Recommendation:
¢ Receive and file the report.

It was moved by Mayor Pro Tem Mora, seconded by Councilmember Zamora, to
approve ltem Nos. 6A through 6E, by the following vote:

Ayes: Rodriguez, Trujillo, Zamora, Mora, Rounds
Nayes: None
Absent: None

PUBLIC HEARING
Consideration of Adoption of Resolution of Necessity No. 9690 for the Acquisition by

Eminent Domain of Certain Real Property Interests for Public Purposes for the Valley

View Avenue and Alondra Boulevard Intersection Improvement Project (Public Works)

Recommendation:

e Consider and Adopt Resolution No. 9690 — A Resolution of Necessity of
the City of Santa Fe Springs declaring certain real property interests
located at 15905 Valley View Avenue, and further identified as Assessor’s
Parcel Number 7001-012-053 (“Subject Property”), necessary for public

Page 2




Minutes of the August 13, 2020 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings

purposes and authorizing the acquisition thereof, in connection with the
Valley View Avenue and Alondra Boulevard Intersection Improvement
Project (“Project”);

e Open and conduct a Public Hearing on the adoption of the proposed
Resolution of Necessity, receive from staff the evidence stated and
referred to in this Agenda Report (“Report”), take testimony from any
person wishing to be heard and consider all evidence to determine
whether to adopt proposed Resolution of Necessity, which requires the
City Council’'s separate consideration and determination;

e Find that the public interest, convenience and necessity require the
acquisition of the proposed Subject Property for the benefit of the City’s
intersection and roadway widening Project.

e Find that Project is located in the manner that will be most compatible with
the greatest public good and the least private injury.

e Find that the Subject Property sought to be acquired is necessary for the
City's intersection and roadway widening Project. Without the acquisition
of the Subject Property, the City will not be able to proceed with the
Project.

e Find that that the offer required by section 7267.2 of the Government Code
has been made to the owners of record of the property to be acquired.

e Authorize the City Attorney’s office and City staff to take all necessary
steps to deposit with the Court the amount of probable compensation
required by law for issuance of the Order for Possession; and

e Authorize the City Manager, or his designee, to execute all necessary
documents.

Director of Public Works, Noe Negrete provided a presentation and introduced Carrie
Raven from Jones & Mayer Legal Counsel.

Mayor Rounds opened the Public Hearing at 6:20 p.m.
There was no one wishing to speak on Item No. 7
Mayor Rounds closed the Public Hearing at 6:21 p.m.

It was moved by Councilmember Rodriguez, seconded by Councilmember
Trujillo, to consider and Adopt Resolution No. 9690 — A Resolution of Necessity
of the City of Santa Fe Springs declaring certain real property interests located
at 15905 Valley View Avenue, and further identified as Assessor’s Parcel Number
7001-012-053 (“Subject Property”), necessary for public purposes and
authorizing the acquisition thereof, in connection with the Valley View Avenue
and Alondra Boulevard Intersection Improvement Project (“Project”), open and
conduct a Public Hearing on the adoption of the proposed Resolution of
Necessity, receive from staff the evidence stated and referred to in this Agenda
Report (“Report”), take testimony from any person wishing to be heard and
consider all evidence to determine whether to adopt proposed Resolution of
Necessity, which requires the City Council's separate consideration and
determination, find that the public interest, convenience and necessity require the

Page 3




Minutes of the August 13, 2020 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings

acquisition of the proposed Subject Property for the benefit of the City's
intersection and roadway widening Project, find that Project is located in the
manner that will be most compatible with the greatest public good and the least
private injury, find that the Subject Property sought to be acquired is necessary
for the City’s intersection and roadway widening Project. Without the acquisition
of the Subject Property, the City will not be able to proceed with the Project, find
that that the offer required by section 7267.2 of the Government Code has been
made to the owners of record of the property to be acquired, authorize the City
Attorney’s office and City staff to take all necessary steps to deposit with the Court
the amount of probable compensation required by law for issuance of the Order
for Possession; and authorize the City Manager, or his designee, to execute all
necessary documents, by the following vote:

Ayes: Rodriguez, Trujillo, Zamora, Mora, Rounds
Nayes: None
Absent: None

NEW BUSINESS

8. Lower San Gabriel River Watershed Management Program (WMP) and Coordinated
Integrated Monitoring Program (CIMP) Implementation — Second Amendment (Public
Works)

Recommendation:

e Approve the Second Amendment to the MOU with Gateway Water
Management Authority (GWMA) to continue to implement a Watershed
Management Program (WMP) and Coordinated Integrated Monitoring
Program (CIMP), including the construction of regional BMP projects for
the Lower San Gabriel River Watershed Committee (LSGR), and:

e Authorize the City Manager to execute the Second Amendment.

It was moved by Councilmember Trujillo, seconded by Councilmember Zamora, to
approve the Second Amendment to the MOU with Gateway Water Management
Authority (GWMA) to continue to implement a Watershed Management Program
(WMP) and Coordinated Integrated Monitoring Program (CIMP), including the
construction of regional BMP projects for the Lower San Gabriel River Watershed
Committee (LSGR), and authorize the City Manager to execute the Second
Amendment, by the following vote:

Ayes: Rodriguez, Trujillo, Zamora, Mora, Rounds
Nayes: None
Absent: None
9. Transfer Agreement for Safe Clean Water Municipal Program with Los Angeles County

Flood Control District (Public Works)
Recommendation:
e Approve Transfer Agreement No. 2020MP72 with the Los Angeles County
Flood Control District for the Safe, Clean Water Municipal Program; and
e Authorize the Mayor to execute the agreement.

It was moved by Councilmember Zamora, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mora, to
approve Transfer Agreement No. 2020MP72 with Los Angeles County Flood

Page 4




Minutes of the August 13, 2020 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings

Control District for the Safe, Clean Water Municipal Program, and authorize the
Mayor to execute the agreement, by the following vote:

Ayes: Rodriguez, Trujillo, Zamora, Mora, Rounds
Nayes: None
Absent: None

10. Measure R Funding Agreements with Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation
Authority — Amendment No. 1 (Public Works)
Recommendation:

o Approve Amendment No. 1 to Funding Agreement MR 315.40 for the
Valley View Avenue and Rosecrans Avenue Intersection Improvements;

e Approve Amendment No. 1 to Funding Agreement MR 315.41 for the
Valley View Avenue and Alondra Boulevard Intersection Improvements;
and

e Authorize the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 for both
projects.

It was moved by Councilmember Trujillo, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez,
to approve Amendment No. 1 to Funding Agreement MR 315.40 for the Valley
View Avenue and Rosecrans Avenue Intersection Improvements, approve
Amendment No. 1 to Funding Agreement MR 315.41 for the Valley View Avenue
and Alondra Boulevard Intersection Improvements, and authorize the City
Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 for both projects, by the following vote:

Ayes: Rodriguez, Trujillo, Zamora, Mora, Rounds
Nayes: None
Absent: None

11.  Eirst Amendments to the Cooperative Agreement and the Ground Lease with the City of
Norwalk for the operation and maintenance of the Transportation Center (Public Works)
Recommendation:
e Approve the First Amendment to the Cooperative Agreement in
substantially the form as attached;
e Approve the First Amendment to the Ground Lease in substantially the
form as attached;
e Find that the approval of the Amendments is exempt from CEQA review
pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines; and
e Authorize the City Manager to execute the First Amendments to the
Cooperative Agreement and the Ground Lease in substantially the form
as attached.

Director of Public Works, Noe Negrete provided a brief presentation on Item No. 11.

Mayor Pro Tem Mora inquired what the City’s cost was to operate the transportation
center. Director Negrete responded that it was between $75,000 to $100,000 a year.
The City of Norwalk was charging more staff time over the years causing the amount
to rise.

It was moved by Councilmember Trujillo, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez,
Page 5§




Minutes of the August 13, 2020 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings

12.

13.

to approve the First Amendment to the Cooperative Agreement in substantially the
form as attached, approve the First Amendment to the Ground Lease in
substantially the form as attached, find that the approval of the Amendments is
exempt from CEQA review pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA
Guidelines, and authorize the City Manager to execute the First Amendments to
the Cooperative Agreement and the Ground Lease in substantially the form as
attached, by the following vote:

Ayes: Rodriguez, Trujillo, Zamora, Mora, Rounds
Nayes: None
Absent: None

Approval of Personnel Modifications (Fire)
Recommendation:

e Approve the classification specification changes for the following
positions: Deputy Fire Marshal, Environmental Protection/Fire Prevention
Bureau Specialist, Fire Environmental Safety Inspector-ll, Fire and
Environmental Safety Inspector-I

e Upon the current employee’s retirement, eliminate the Director of
Environmental Protection position for the Department of Fire-Rescue.

e Replace the eliminated Director of Environmental Protection position with
the new position of a Battalion Chief for administration.

e Approve the Title change from Deputy Director of Environmental
Protection Services to Environmental Programs Manager with
specification changes for that position.

It was moved by Councilmember Rodriguez, seconded by Councilmember Trujillo,
to approve the classification specification changes for the following positions:
Deputy Fire Marshal, Environmental Protection/Fire Prevention Bureau Specialist,
Fire Environmental Safety Inspector-II; Fire and Environmental Safety Inspector-|,
upon the current employee’s retirement, eliminate the Director of Environmental
Protection position for the Department of Fire-Rescue, replace the eliminated
Director of Environmental Protection position with the new position of a Battalion
Chief for administration, and approve the Title change from Deputy Director of
Environmental Protection Services to Environmental Programs Manager with
specification changes for that position, by the following vote:

Ayes: Rodriguez, Trujillo, Zamora, Mora, Rounds
Nayes: None
Absent: None

Approval of the Agreement between the City of Santa Fe Springs and the City of Santa
Fe Springs General City Employees Association (SESCEA), the City of Santa Fe Springs
Firemens' Association (SFSFFA) and the City of Santa Fe Springs Executive,
Management & Confidential Association (SFSEMCA) (Finance)
Recommendation:
e Approve the FY 2020-21 labor agreements with SFSCEA, SFSFFA and
SFSEMCA.
e Appropriate $155,600 from the General Fund and Water Fund reserves
to fund labor agreement costs not already included in the FY 2020-21

Page 6




Minutes of the August 13, 2020 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings

14.

operating budget.

It was moved by Counciimember Zamora, seconded by Councilmember
Rodriguez, to approve the FY 2020-21 labor agreements with SFSCEA, SFSFFA
and SFSEMCA, and appropriate $155,600 from the General Fund and Water Fund
reserves to fund labor agreement costs not already included in the FY 2020-21
operating budget, by the following vote:

Ayes: Rodriguez, Truijillo, Zamora, Mora, Rounds
Nayes: None
Absent: None

CITY MANAGER AND EXECUTIVE TEAM REPORTS

City Manager, Raymond R. Cruz spoke about the skeletal crews at city facilities during
COVID-19. He stated that starting August 17, more employees will be working shift
schedules with rotating Fridays until there is a significant reduction in COVID-19 cases,
or a vaccine or effective treatment becomes available. He also provided an update on the
installation of plexiglass structures at employee workstations in anticipation of allowing
members of the public entry to city facilities by appointment only in the future. Lastly, he
talked about the news release from Los Angeles Public Health regarding an investigation
to COVID-19 outbreaks at Trojan Battery within the City.

Director of Public Works, Noe Negrete shared pictures of the installations of plexiglass at
city facilities. He also provided an update on the windmill at Heritage Park. He reported
that City staff were able to reconstruct the windmill after initially contacting contractors for
an estimate on repairs. He highlighted the great work done by facilities staff, and
recognized employee Todd Heggstrom for his efforts.

Director of Planning, Wayne Morrell spoke about the 2-year process of updating the
general plan and stressed the importance of having an updated general plan. He says
that residents can take surveys on the City’s websites to provide input on the general
plan. Second, Director Morrell spoke about an announcement made from the California
legislature for affordable housing, and highlighted the assistance provided to City
residents by the Planning Department. He presented several examples of shipping
container structures that could potentially be used for affordable housing in the future.
Director of Police Services, Dino Torres announced that the Safe Neighborhood Team
meetings will be going virtual starting on September 8.

Fire Chief, Brent Hayward provided an update on COVID-19 cases within the City and
surrounding areas. He also reported that some Fire Department crews were assisting at
the Lake Hughes Fire and also reported that the crews who were assisting at the Apple
Fire returned safe and sound. He also spoke about the success of the blood drive at Town
Center Hall on August 6. Lastly, he reported that the MDA — “Fill the Boot” fundraising
will be going virtual this year.

Director of Finance, Travis Hickey spoke about the approval of the contract with the new
auditing firm. Lastly, he thanked Debbie Ford, Human Resources Manager and Collin
Tanner — labor negotiator — for working alongside the labor associations to finalize the

Page 7




Minutes of the August 13, 2020 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings

15.

agreements.

Director of Community Services, Maricela Balderas spoke about the success of the
“Drive-In Movie Series” at Little Lake Park, which has prompted the addition of another
showing which will be on August 215t. She reported that the “Back to School Program” on
August 7t provided backpacks and school supplies to students via a drive-thru event.
She also reported that the City has been in contact with a representative of Los Angeles
County Public Health to host a potential flu vaccine clinic on Wednesday, October 28,
In the event that the number of COVID-19 cases rise, the clinic could be canceled. She
announced that on August 24" Parks and Recreation Division will be distributing grab
and go bags for children. She reported on the success of the Virtual Summer Camp which
was hosted by the Parks and Recreation and Library Services Divisions and announced
extended hours for the curbside pickup services at the City Library. She also provided an
update on the Fiestas Patrias event this year and announced the drive-in concert and
mural preregistration requirements.

COUNCIL COMMENTS
Councilmember Rodriguez thanked Community Services and Police Services for their

hard work. She commended the Public Works Department on the installation of the
plexiglass fixtures throughout the City and thanked the Fire Department for assisting to
quell the fires. Lastly, she thanked the Women's Club for their great work.

Councilmember Trujillo thanked staff for continuing to work during COVID-19 and
expressed her satisfaction at the work done on the installation of the plexiglass around
the City. She acknowledged the success of the drive-in movies and shared that residents
really enjoy the offerings.

Councilmember Zamora echoed the sentiments of the Councilmembers Trujillo and
Rodriguez on the efficacy of the plexiglass installations. He commended staff on the
distribution of school supplies and the great execution of the drive-in movies. He thanked
all the residents who are essential workers for their continued hard work.

Mayor Pro Tem Mora acknowledged the return of the back-to-school season and
commended the work done on the windmill at Heritage Park. He thanked the Fire
Department on their continued work to combat the wildfires and expressed his joy at the
success of the drive-in movies. Lastly, he thanked staff for their hard work.

Mayor Rounds thanked staff for their continued work on the plexiglass installations and
for the windmill upgrade. He expressed his excitement at the continued development of
the General Plan and looks forward to the return of the Advisory Committees via Zoom.
He thanked Community Services for continuing to provide great offerings to the residents
and thanked staff for the quick execution of the ordinance that allows for outdoor dining.

Page 8




Minutes of the August 13, 2020 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings

16.

17.

18.

CLOSED SESSION

THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES

(Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957)

Consultation with: Fire Chief, Police Chief and Captain, Director of Police Services, City
Attorney

CLOSED SESSION
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
Initiation of litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4): Two Cases

CLOSED SESSION
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION
Initiation of litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2): One Case

Mayor Rounds recessed the meetings at 7:16 p.m.

Mayor Rounds convened the meeting at 9:52 p.m.

19.

20.

CLOSED SESSION REPORT

City Attorney, lvy M. Tsai, provided a report on the closed session items: Direction was
given to staff and no reportable action was taken.

ADJOURNMENT
Mayor Rounds adjourned the meeting at 9:52 p.m.

William K. Rounds, Mayor
ATTEST:

Janet Martinez, City Clerk Date

Page 9




ITEM NO. 7






SITE LEASE WITH OPTION

THIS SITE LEASE WITH OPTION (this “Lease”) is by and between City of Santa Fe
Springs, a municipal corporation, (“Landlord”) and T-Mobile West Corporation, a Delaware
corporation (“Tenant”).

1. Option to Lease.

(a) In consideration of the payment of one hundred and no/100 dollars ($100.00) (the “Option
Fee”) by Tenant to Landlord, Landlord hereby grants to Tenant an option to lease the use of a portion
of the real property described in the attached Exhibit A (the “Property”), on the terms and conditions
set forth herein (the “Option”). The Option shall be for an initial term of twelve (12) months,
commencing on the Effective Date (as defined below) (the “Option Period”). The Option Period
may be extended by Tenant for an additional twelve (12) months upon written notice to Landlord and
payment of the sum of one hundred and no/100 dollars ($100.00) (“Additional Option Fee”) at any
time prior to the end of the Option Period. Notwithstanding the foregoing however, when Tenant
obtains its building permit to construct the Wireless Facilities (as defined below) on the Lease Area
(as defined below), Tenant will promptly send written notification thereof to the Landlord not later
than five (5) days thereafer, which notification shall serve as Tenant’s exercising of the Option,
unless the Option has otherwise previously been exercised.

(b) During the Option Period Tenant shall obtain all certificates, permits, zoning, and other
approvals that may be required by any federal, state or local authority. Copies of Tenant’s FCC
Radio Authorization Forms shall be attached to Lease at time of Tenant’s signing of the Lease.
Tenant shall erect, maintain and operate its Wireless Facilities in accordance with state and federal
statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations now in effect or that thereafter may be issued by the
Federal Communications Commission or any other applicable governing bodies. This provision shall
supersede any provision to the contrary contained herein. Landlord agrees to cooperate with and to
allow Tenant, at no cost to Landlord, to obtain a title report, zoning approvals and variances, land-use
permits, and Landlord expressly grants to Tenant a right of access to the Property to perform surveys,
soils tests, and other engineering procedures or environmental investigations on the Property
necessary to determine that Tenant’s use of the Lease Area will be compatible with Tenant’s
engineering  specifications, system design, operations and Governmental Approvals.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant may not amend, revise or change the zoning classification of
the Property without first obtaining Landlord’s written consent. During the Option Period and any
extension thereof, Landlord agrees that it will not interfere with Tenant’s efforts to secure other
licenses and permits or authorizations that relate to other property unless this Lease would be
breached by said licenses, permits or other authorizations, During the Option Period and any
extension thereof, Tenant may exercise the Option by so notifying Landlord in writing, at Landlord’s
address in accordance with Section 12 hereof.

(c) If Tenant exercises the Option, then, subject to the following terms and conditions,
Landlord hereby leases to Tenant the use of that portion of the Property defined as the “Lease Area”
(Exhibit B). The Lease Area, located at 10900 Pioneer Blvd., Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670,
comprises approximately 375 square feet as shown in Exhibit B.

2. Term. The initial term of this Lease shall be ten (10) years commencing on the date of the
exercise of the Option (the “Commencement Date”), and terminating at midnight on the last day of
the month of the initial term (the “Initial Term”).

Site Number: LA13144C
Site Name: Little Lake Park
Market: LA/OC




3. Renewal, Following the Initial Term, Tenant shall have the right to extend this Lease for
one (1) additional five-year term (to be known as the “Renewal Term”) on the same terms and
conditions as set forth herein, This Lease shall automatically renew for the Renewal Term unless
Tenant notifies Landlord, in writing, of Tenant’s intention not to renew this Lease, at least thirty (30)
days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term. If Tenant shall remain in possession of the Lease
Area at the expiration of this Lease or the Renewal Term without a written agreement, such tenancy
shall be deemed a month-to-month tenancy under the same terms and conditions of this Lease. In the
event Tenant does not vacate the Lease Area after thirty (30) days’ written notice to vacate from the
Landlord during the month-to-month tenancy, the Tenant’s equipment shall be subject to abatement.

4, Rent,

(a) From and after the Commencement Date, Tenant shall pay Landlord or designee, as rent,
two thousand five hundred and no/100 dollars ($2,500.00) per month (“Rent”). The first payment of
Rent shall be due within twenty (20) days following the Commencement Date and shall be prorated
based on the days remaining in the month following the Commencement Date, and thereafter Rent
will be payable monthly in advance by the fifth day of each month to Landlord at the address
specified in Section 12 below. If this Lease is terminated for any reason (other than a breach of lease
by Tenant) at a time other than on the last day of a month, Rent shall be prorated as of the date of
termination and all prepaid Rent shall be immediately refunded to Tenant. Landlord, its successors,
assigns and/or designee, if any, will submit to Tenant any documents required by Tenant in
connection with the payment of Rent, including, without limitation, an IRS Form W-9.

(b) Rent will be increased on each annual anniversary of the Commencement Date to an
amount equal to the amount of the monthly installments of Rent payable during the preceding year
increased by three percent (3%).

(c) Within thirty (30) days after the Commencement Date, and as partial consideration for the
rights and privileges granted to it herein, Tenant hereby agrees to make a one-time contribution in the
sum of ten thousand and no/100 dollars ($10,000.00) to the City of Santa Fe Springs for its Heritage
Artwork in Public Places Program.

5. Permitted Use. The Lease Area may be used by Tenant for the transmission,
amplification and reception of radio communication signals within the following frequencies, or as
otherwise authorized for Tenant’s use by the FCC: '

1890-1900 MHz and 1970-1980 MHz (commonly referred to as “PCS”).
. 1710-1755 MHz and 2110-2155 MHz (commonly referred to as “AWS-1”).

Tenant shall submit to Landlord copies of Tenant’s FCC Radio Authorization Forms prior to
the execution of this Lease.

The Lease Area may also be used by Tenant for the construction, installation, operation,
maintenance, repair, removal, modification or replacement of communication equipment and
facilities, including radio equipment, antennas, microwave dishes, equipment shelters and/or
cabinets, backup emergency power batteries and generator(s) (subject to Section 7(f) below) and
related activities, as more particularly shown and specified in Exhibit B. Tenant’s use includes the
ability to share use of the above mentioned frequencies pursuant to roaming and/or similar
agreements with other third parties or as otherwise consented to by Landlord, which consent shall not
be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed unless such consent would conflict with this
section or other sections of the Lease.

Site Number;: LA13144C
Site Name: Little Lake Park
Market: LA/OC




6. Interference. Tenant shall not use the Lease Area in any way which interferes with the use
of the Property by Landlord, or lessees or licensees of Landlord with equipment installed prior in
time to Tenant’s installation. Similarly, Landlord shall not use, nor shall Landlord permit its lessees,
licensees, employees, invitees or agents to use, any portion of the Property in any way which
interferes with the radio frequency operations of Tenant. Such radio frequency interference shall be
deemed a material breach by the interfering party, who shall, upon written notification by the party
interfered with, be responsible for terminating said interference. In the event any such interference
does not cease promptly, the parties acknowledge that continuing interference may cause irreparable
injury and, therefore, the injured party shall have the right, in addition to any other rights that it may
have at law or in equity, to bring a court action to enjoin such interference or to terminate this Lease
immediately upon written notice.

7. Improvements:; Utilities; Access.

(a) Tenant shall have the right, at its expense, to erect and maintain on the Lease Area
improvements, personal property and facilities necessary to operate its communications system,
including those radio transmitting, amplifying and receiving antennas, microwave dishes, equipment
shelters and/or cabinets and related cables and utility lines and a location-based system, as more
particularly depicted in Exhibit B. Additional equipment may include antenna(s), coaxial cable, base
units, location-based systems, and other associated equipment (collectively, the “Wireless
Facilities”). Tenant shall have the right to alter, replace, expand, enhance, upgrade and fill cabinets
with communications equipment located within the building-based portion of the Lease Area at any
time during the term of this Lease and to replace antenna equipment with similar equipment of the
same or smaller structural load located at the same locations as the antennas being replaced. If
Tenant desires to install additional antennas or replace existing antennas with replacement antennas
which materially increase the structural load on the Replacement Light Standard, such changes and
additions are subject to the consent of the Landlord and may result in increases in Rent. Such
consent is not to be unreasonably withheld pending any Rent negotiation. Tenant shall cause all
construction to occur lien-free and in compliance with all applicable laws and ordinances, and shall
discharge or bond any mechanic’s lien filed or recorded as a result thereof.

(b) Landlord acknowledges that it shall not interfere with any aspects of construction,
including, without limitation, attempting to direct construction personnel as to the location of or
method of installation of the Wireless Facilities (“Construction Interference”). Landlord further
acknowledges that it will be responsible for any costs and damages (including, fines and penalties)
that are directly attributable to Landlord’s Construction Interference.

(c) Tenant at its sole expense shall remove and transfer to Landlord’s storage area located
within the immediate vicinity, the existing light standard, platform and light fixtures, and dispose of
the foundation material currently located within the Lease Area, as more particularly described on the
Exhibit B (the “Original Light Standard”). Following removal, Tenant shall have the right to replace
the Original Light Standard with a replacement light standard structurally capable of supporting
Landlord’s light fixtures, Tenant’s antennas and other ancillary Tenant equipment (the “Replacement
Light Standard”). The Replacement Light Standard shall be structurally designed to allow at least
one (1) additional wireless carrier. The structural capacity of the Replacement Light Standard shall
be pursuant to the ANSI standard of the Telecommunication Industry Association and Electrical
Industry Association Number 222 (Revision G). This standard is known as TIA/EIA 222G. Prior to
installing the Replacement Light Standard and light fixtures, Tenant, at its sole expense, shall have a
photometric study performed on the impacted ball field. Landlord shall review the photometric study
report prior to Tenant installing the Replacement Light Standard and light fixtures. Upon installation

3
Site Number: LA13144C
Site Name: Little Lake Park
Market: LA/OC




of the Replacement Light Standard, Landlord shall own and maintain the Replacement Light
Standard during the term of this Lease. In addition, after Tenant initially installs Landlord’s light
fixtures on the Replacement Light Standard, Landlord shall thereafter be solely responsible for
changing out any light fixtures located thereon as may be necessary. The light fixtures to be installed
upon the Replacement Light Standard shall be supplied and continuously owned by Landlord during
the entire term of this Lease. Following the installation of the Replacement Light Standard, Landlord
shall have thirty (30) days to inspect such installation and provide Tenant with a written list of any
aspect of such installation that is out of compliance with the approved Exhibit B attached hereto.
Tenant shall promptly remedy any such items so noticed at its sole cost and expense whereupon
Landlord shall have an additional thirty (30) days to inspect the Replacement Light Standard for
acceptance by Landlord. In the event the Replacement Light Standard remains out of compliance
with the Exhibit B, the notice, remedy and approval process outlined in the preceding sentences shall
repeat until Landlord fails to notify Tenant of any such item of non-compliance within the applicable
thirty (30) day period whereupon title and ownership of the Replacement Light Standard shall
automatically, without need for execution of further documentation, transfer to Landlord in its “AS
1S” and “WHERE IS” condition without warranty or representation of any kind other than any
assignable manufacturer’s warranty, if any, which Tenant shall assign to Landlord. Following such
transfer, Landlord will be solely responsible for the ongoing maintenance and upkeep of the
Replacement Light Standard and Tenant shall have no further responsibility in relation thereto.
Landlord’s acceptance of the Replacement Light Standard as outlined above shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. All other portions of the Wireless Facilities shall
remain the exclusive property of Tenant and shall not be considered fixtures. Tenant shall have the
right to remove the Wireless Facilities at any time during and upon the expiration or termination of
this Lease, unless said portions are shared, by agreement between Tenant and Landlord or Tenant and
other tenants (co-locations) and are required to remain per such agreement(s). Tenant shall not be
required to remove the Replacement Light Standard following acceptance thereof by Landlord as
outlined above.

(d) Tenant, at its expense, may use any and all appropriate means of restricting access to the
Wireless Facilities, including, without limitation, the construction of a fence, such fence to be
approved by the Planning and Development Department of the City of Santa Fe Springs. The Tenant
shall allow any co-locatees access through any such fence after first obtaining the written approval by
the Landlord. -

(¢) Tenant shall, at Tenant’s expense, keep and maintain the Wireless Facilities now or
hereafter located on the Property in commercially reasonable condition and repair during the term of
this Lease, normal wear and tear and casualty excepted. Upon termination or expiration of this
Lease, the Lease Area shall be returned to Landlord in good, usable condition, normal wear and tear
and casualty excepted.

(f) Tenant shall have the right to install utilities, at Tenant’s expense, and to improve the
present utilities on the Property (including, but not limited to, the Lease Area shown in Exhibit B).
No emergency power generator may be installed, either permanently or temporarily, without the
written approval of the Department of Planning and Development, Department of Fire and Rescue
and Building Division of the City of Santa Fe Springs, which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld. Landlord agrees to use reasonable efforts in assisting Tenant to acquire necessary utility
service. Tenant shall install separate meters for utilities used on the Property by Tenant. Landlord
shall assist Tenant in having the utility provider correct any variation, interruption or failure of utility
service.

Site Number: LA13144C
Site Name: Little Lake Park
Market: LA/OC




(g) As partial consideration for Rent paid under this Lease, Landlord hereby grants Tenant
access in, under and across the Property for ingress, egress, utilities and access (including access for
the purposes described in Section 1) to the Lease Area adequate to install and maintain utilities,
which include, but are not limited to, the installation of power and telephone service cable, and to
service the Lease Area and the Wireless Facilities at all times during the Initial Term of this Lease
and the Renewal Term of this Lease (collectively, the “Easements™).

(h) With 72-hour notice to Landlord, Tenant shall have 24-hours-a-day, 7-days-a-week
vehicle access to the Lease Area (“Access™) at all times during the Initial Term of this Lease and the
Renewal Term at no additional charge to the Tenant. With 24-hour notice to Landlord, Tenant shall
have 24-hours-a-day, 7 days-a week foot access to the Lease Area (“Access”) at all times during the
Initial Term of this Lease and the Renewal Term at no additional charge to Tenant. In the event
Landlord, its employees or agents, impede or deny Access to Tenant, its employees or agents, Tenant
shall, without waiving any other rights that it may have at law or in equity, deduct from Rent
amounts due under this Lease an amount equal to five hundred and no/100 dollars ($500.00) per day
for each day that Access is impeded or denied. Notwithstanding the foregoing however, in the event
of a service affecting condition or other emergency, Tenant shall have immediate Access to the Lease
Area provided it provides Landlord with written notice of such Access promptly thereafter; however,
Tenant’s access to the Lease Area shall be limited when the Property is being used for a public
event, during which times Tenant will obey any procedures set by Landlord regarding accessing
the Lease Area in a manner so as to not interfere with such public events.

(i) In the event Tenant or its agents damage any utilities and/or irrigation, facility, structure or
improvement on the Property while accessing the Lease Area, Tenant shall be responsible at Tenant’s
sole cost and expense, for the cost to repair or replace such damage to the condition that existed prior
to the occurrence of such damage.

8. Termination. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Lease may be terminated, without
any penalty or further liability as follows:

(a) upon thirty (30) days’ written notice by Landlord if Tenant fails to cure a default for
payment of amounts due under this Lease within that thirty (30) day period;

(b) immediately if Tenant notifies Landlord of unacceptable results of any title report,
environmental or soil tests prior to Tenant’s installation of the Wireless Facilities on the Lease Area,
or if Tenant is unable to obtain, maintain, or otherwise forfeits or cancels any license (including,
without limitation, an FCC license), permit or any Governmental Approval necessary to the
installation and/or operation of the Wireless Facilities or Tenant’s business;

(c) upon thirty (30) days’ written notice by Tenant if the Property or the Wireless Facilities
are, or become, unacceptable under Tenant’s design or engineering specifications for its Wireless
Facilities or the communications system to which the Wireless Facilities belong;

(d) immediately upon written notice by Tenant if the Lease Area or the Wireless Facilities are
destroyed or damaged so as in Tenant’s reasonable judgment to substantially and adversely affect the
effective use of the Wireless Facilities. In such event, all rights and obligations of the parties shall
cease as of the date of the damage or destruction, and Tenant shall be entitled to the reimbursement
of any Rent prepaid by Tenant, unless Temporary Wireless Facilities, such as, but not limited to,
Cellular on Wheels (COWSs) or Cellular on Light Trucks (COLTSs) are approved in writing by the
Planning and Development Department of the City of Santa Fe Springs. If Tenant elects to continue
this Lease, then all Rent shall abate until the Lease Area and/or the Wireless Facilities are restored

5

Site Number: LA13144C
Site Name: Little Lake Park
Market: LA/OC




with temporary facilities or to the condition existing immediately prior to such damage or destruction
ifno COW, COLT or other temporary facilities are utilized; or

(e) at the time title to the Property transfers to a condemning authority, pursuant to a taking of
all or a portion of the Property sufficient in Tenant’s determination to render the Lease Area
unsuitable for Tenant’s use. Landlord and Tenant shall each be entitled to pursue their own separate
awards with respect to such taking, Sale of all or part of the Property to a purchaser with the power
of eminent domain in the face of the exercise of the power shall be treated as a taking by
condemnation; or

() upon thirty (30) days’ written notice by Tenant if Tenant determines that the Property or
Wireless Facilities are inappropriate or unnecessary for Tenant’s operations due to economic reasons.

9. Default, Breach and Right to Cure. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the
contrary and without waiving any other rights granted to it at law or in equity, each party shall have
the right, but not the obligation, to terminate this Lease on written notice pursuant to Section 12
hereof, to take effect immediately, if the other party (i) fails to perform any covenant for a period of
thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice thereof to cure or (ii) either performs an action or
installation without obtaining consent or approval as prescribed in this Lease and does not reverse
such action within ten (10) days notice thereof unless subsequently approved in writing by the other

party.

10. Taxes. Landlord represents that it has no obligation to pay real property taxes for the
Property, including the Lease Area. For taxation purposes, Tenant shall have a possessory interest in
all equipment, infrastructure, antennas, cables and structure(s) installed by Tenant on or within the
Lease Area or Easements provided that Tenant shall not have a possessory interest in the
Replacement Light Standard which is to be transferred to Landlord as set forth above. Tenant shall
pay any personal property tax, real property tax or any other tax or fee which are directly attributable
to the presence or installation of the Tenant’s Wireless Facilities, only for so long as this Lease has
not expired of its own terms or is not terminated by either party. Landlord hereby grants to Tenant
the right to challenge, whether in a Court, Administrative Proceeding, or other venue, on behalf of
Landlord and/or Tenant, any personal property or real property tax assessments that may affect
Tenant, If Landlord receives notice of any personal property or real property tax assessment against
the Landlord, which may affect Tenant and is directly atiributable to Tenant’s installation, Landlord
shall provide timely notice of the assessment to Tenant sufficient to allow Tenant to consent to or
challenge such assessment. Further, Landlord shall provide to Tenant any and all documentation
associated with the assessment and shall execute any and all documents reasonably necessary to
effectuate the intent of this Section 10.

11. Insurance and Subrogation and Indemnification.

(a) Tenant shall provide Commercial General Liability Insurance in an aggregate amount of
One Million and no/100 dollars ($1,000,000.00). Tenant may satisfy this requirement by obtaining
the appropriate endorsement to any master policy of liability insurance Tenant may maintain.
Insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance submitted to the Planning and
Development Department of the City of Santa Fe Springs prior to the Commencement Date of this
Lease. A new certificate shall be submitted to the Planning and Development Department of the City
of Santa Fe Springs before the current certificate expires,

(b) Landlord and Tenant hereby mutually release each other (and their successors or assigns)
from liability and waive all right of recovery against the other for any loss or damage covered by

6

Site Number: LA13144C
Site Name: Little Lake Park
Market: LA/OC




their respective first party property insurance policies for all perils insured thereunder. In the event
of such insured loss, neither party’s insurance company shall have a subrogated claim against the
other. To the extent loss or damage is not covered by their first party property insurance policies,
Landlord and Tenant each agree to indemnify and hold harmless the other party from and against any
and all claims, damages, cost and expenses, including reasonable attorney fees, to the extent caused
by: (a) the negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct in the operations or activities on the
Property by the indemnifying party or the employees, agents, contractors, licensees, tenants and/or
subtenants of the indemnifying party, or (b) a breach of any obligation of the indemnifying party
under this Lease. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this indemnification shall not extend to indirect,
special, incidental or consequential damages, including, without limitation, loss of profits, income or
business opportunities to the indemnified party or anyone claiming through the indemnified party.
The indemnifying party’s obligations under this section are contingent upon (i) its receiving prompt
written notice of any event giving rise to an obligation to indemnifying the other party and (ii) the
indemnified party’s granting it the right to control the defense and settlement of the same.

(c) Tenant agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Landlord, its agents, officers
and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City or its agents, officers or
employees to attack, set aside, void or annul an approval of the Landlord or any of its councils,
commissions, committees or boards concerning Conditional Use Permit Case No. 688, when action is
brought within the time period provided for in the City’s Zoning Ordinance, Section 155.865.
Should the Landlord, its agents, officers or employees receive notice of any such claim, action or
proceeding, the City shall promptly notify Tenant of such claim, action or proceeding, and shall
cooperate fully in the defense thereof.

(d) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Lease, the parties hereby confirm that the
provisions of this Section 11 shall survive the expiration or termination of this Lease. Tenant shall
not be responsible to Landlord, or any third-party, for any claims, costs or damages (including, fines
and penalties) attributable to any pre-existing violations of applicable codes, statutes or other
regulations governing the Property, including the Lease Area.

12. Notices. All notices, requests, demands and other communications shall be in writing
and are effective three (3) days after deposit in the U.S. mail, certified and postage paid, or upon
receipt if personally delivered or sent by next-business-day delivery via a nationally recognized
overnight courier to the addresses set forth below. Landlord or Tenant may from time to time
designate any other address for this purpose by providing written notice to the other party.

If to Tenant, to: If to Landlord, to:

T-Mobile USA, Inc. Department of Planning and Development
12920 SE 38th Street City of Santa Fe Springs

Bellevue, WA 98006 11710 Telegraph Road

Attn: PCS Lease Administrator, Site Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670
#LA13144C

Vith a copy to:
Attn: Legal Dept. / LA13144C

Site Number: LA13144C
Site Name; Little Lake Park
Market: LA/OC




And with a copy to: Send Rent payments to:

T-Mobile West Corporation City of Santa Fe Springs
2008 McGaw Avenue 11710 Telegraph Road
Irvine, CA 92614 Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670
Atin: Lease Administration Manager, Site

#L.A13144C

With a copy to:
Atin: Legal Dept. / LA13144C

13. Quiet Enjoyment, Title and Authority. Landlord covenants and warrants to Tenant that
(i) Landlord has full right, power and authority to execute this Lease; (ii)it has good and
unencumbered title to the Property free and clear of any liens or mortgages, except those disclosed to
Tenant and which will not interfere with Tenant’s rights to or use of the Lease Area; and
(iii) execution and performance of this Lease will not violate any laws, ordinances, covenants, or the
provisions of any mortgage, lease, or other agreement binding on Landlord. Landlord covenants that
at all times during the term of this Lease, Tenant’s quiet enjoyment of the Lease Area or any part
thereof shall not be disturbed as long as Tenant is not in default or breach beyond any applicable
grace or cure period. Tenant equally covenants and warrants that Tenant has complied and will
comply with all ordinances and conditions in effect during the Term of this Lease including but not
limited to the City of Santa Fe Springs Noise Ordinance at all times.

14. Environmental Laws.

(a) Landlord represents that it has no knowledge of any substance, chemical or waste
(collectively, “Hazardous Substance”) on the Property that is identified as hazardous, toxic or
dangerous in any applicable federal, state or local law or regulation, Landlord and Tenant shall not
introduce or use any Hazardous Substance, including hydrocarbons or flammable liquids and
flammable gases, on the Property in violation of any applicable law, including the Development Plan
Approval issued to Tenant. Landlord shall be responsible for, and shall promptly conduct, any
investigation and remediation as required by any applicable environmental laws, all spills or other
releases of any Hazardous Substance not caused solely by Tenant, that have occurred or which may
occur on the Property. Tenant agrees to submit any legally required Materials Safety and Data
Sheets (MSDS) to Landlord and to update each MSDS each time the quantities or constituents
identified on said MSDS are changed by Tenant. Each party agrees to defend, indemnify and hold
harmless the other from and against any and all administrative and judicial actions and rulings,
claims, causes of action, demands and liability (collectively, “Claims™) including, but not limited to,
damages, costs, expenses, assessments, penalties, fines, losses, judgments and reasonable attorney
fees that the indemnitee may suffer or incur due to any spills, releases or exacerbation of prior
contamination of any Hazardous Substances on the Property and/or to other properties or into the
environment (collectively, “Actions”), to the extent caused by the indemnitor’s activities on the
Property or its violation of this Section 14. Both parties agree respectively to comply with all
provisions of the California Fire Code and International Fire Code, including the marking
requirements of whichever Code is stricter. Landlord agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Tenant
harmless from Claims resulting from Actions on the Property not caused by Landlord or Tenant prior
to and during the Initial Term and any Renewal Term of this Lease.

(b) The indemnifications in this Section 14 specifically include, without limitation, costs
incurred in connection with any investigation of site conditions or any cleanup, remedial, removal or
restoration work required by any governmental authority. This Section 14 shall survive the
termination or expiration of this Lease.

Site Number: LA13144C
Site Name: Little Lake Park
Market: LA/OC




15. Assignment and Subleasing.

(a) Tenant may assign this Lease upon written notice to Landlord to its parent company or
any subsidiary or affiliate of it or its parent company (e.g., DeutscheTelekom) or to a newly acquired,
merged or joint alliance with another carrier (e.g., Sprint PCS). Under all other circumstances, such
assignment or transfer shall require Landlord’s written consent, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Introduction of equipment to the Lease Area owned,
provided or operated by any other FCC-licensed carrier other than Tenant shall be subject to a
sublease and the written approval of Landlord. Upon such assignment, Tenant shall be relieved of all
liabilities and obligations hereunder and Landlord shall look solely to the assignee for performance
under this Lease and all obligations hereunder. Tenant may sublease the Lease Area, upon written
notice to Landlord, provided Landlord agrees to the terms thereof in writing. Landlord may lease
space on the Replacement Light Standard (excluding any portion of the Lease Area) after thirty (30)
days written notice to Tenant provided doing so does not otherwise violate the terms of this Lease
and does not cause the Replacement Light Standard to exceed its structural capacity.

(b) Additionally, Tenant may, upon notice to Landlord, collaterally assign or grant a security
interest in this Lease and the Wireless Facilities, and may assign this Lease and the Wireless
Facilities to any mortgagees or holders of security interests, including their successors or assigns
(collectively “Secured Parties”). In such event, Landlord shall, after reasonable scrutiny and
agreement, execute such consent to leasehold financing as may reasonably be required by such
Secured Parties.

16. Successors and Assigns. This Lease shall run with the land, and shall be binding upon
and inure to the benefit of the parties, their respective successors, personal representatives and
assigns.

17. Waiver of Landlord’s Lien. Landlord hereby waives any and all lien rights it may have,
statutory or otherwise, concerning the Wireless Facilities or any portion. thereof, which shall be
deemed personal property for the purposes of this Lease, whether or not the same is deemed real or
personal property under applicable laws, and Landlord gives Tenant and Secured Parties the right to
remove all or any portion of the same from time to time, whether before or after a default under this
Lease, in Tenant’s and/or Secured Parties’ sole discretion and without Landlord’s consent.

18. Miscellaneous.

(a) The prevailing party in any litigation arising hereunder shall be entitled to its reasonable
attorneys’ fees and court costs, including appeals, if any.

(b) Bach party agrees to furnish to the other, within twenty (20) days after request, such
truthful estoppel information as the other may reasonably request.

(c) This Lease constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the parties, and
supersedes all offers, negotiations and other agreements. There are no representations or
understandings of any kind not set forth herein. Any amendments to this Lease must be in writing
and executed by both parties.

(d) Bach party agrees to cooperate with the other in executing any documents including a
Memorandum of Lease necessary to protect its rights or use of the Lease Area. The Memorandum of
Lease may be recorded in place of this Lease by either party. In the event the Property is

9

Site Number: LA13144C
Site Name; Little Lake Park
Market: LA/OC




encumbered by a mortgage or deed of trust, Landlord agrees, upon request of Tenant, to obtain and
furnish to Tenant a non-disturbance and attornment agreement for each such mortgage or deed of
trust, in a form reasonably acceptable to Tenant. Tenant may obtain title insurance on its interest in
the Lease Area. Landlord agrees to execute such documents as the title company may require in
connection therewith.

(¢) This Lease shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California
subject to superseding Federal Law.

(f) If any term of this Lease is found to be void or invalid, such finding shall not affect the
remaining terms of this Lease, which shall continue in full force and effect. The parties agree that if
any provisions are deemed not enforceable, they shall be deemed modified to the extent necessary to
make them enforceable. Any questions of particular interpretation shall not be interpreted against the
draftsman, but rather in accordance with the fair meaning thereof. No provision of this Lease will be
deemed waived by either party unless expressly waived in writing signed by the waiving party. No
waiver shall be implied by delay or any other act or omission of either party. No waiver by either
party of any provision of this Lease shall be deemed a waiver of such provision with respect to any
subsequent matter relating to such provision.

(g) The persons who have executed this Lease represent and warrant that they are duly
authorized to execute this Lease in their individual or representative capacity as indicated.

(h) This Lease may be executed in any number of counterpart copies, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute a single instrument.

(i) All Exhibits referred to herein and any Addenda are incorporated herein for all purposes.
The parties understand and acknowledge that Exhibit A (the legal description of the Property) and
Exhibit B (the Lease Area location within the Property), may be attached to this Lease in preliminary
form. Accordingly, the parties agree that upon the preparation of final, more complete exhibits,
Exhibits A, and/or B, as the case may be, which may have been attached hereto in preliminary form,
may be replaced by Tenant or Landlord provided each Exhibit is signed by representatives of both
Landlord and Tenant with such final, more complete exhibit(s). The terms of all Exhibits are
incorporated herein for all purposes.

(j) If Landlord is represented by any broker or any other leasing agent, Landlord is
responsible for all commission fees or other payment to such agent, and agrees to indemnify and hold
Tenant harmless from all claims by such broker or anyone claiming through such broker. If Tenant
is represented by any broker or any other leasing agent, Tenant is responsible for all commission fees
or other payment to such agent, and agrees to indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from all claims
by such broker or anyone claiming through such broker

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

10

Site Number: LA13144C
Site Name: Little Lake Park
Market: LA/OC




The effective date of this Lease is the date of execution by the last party to sign (the
“Effective Date”).

LANDLORD: City of Santa Fe Springs, a municipal corporation

By: M //// % ///1/‘ o

Name: Betty Putnam

Title: Mavor

Date: CT - ("‘ }0

TENANT: T-Mobile West Corporation, a Delaware corporation
By: pj »\7‘ ﬂ L

Name: Chnstonher Eldridge \

Title: Regional Development Director

Date: 4 - 19 o

T-Mobile Legal Approval

11

Site Number: LA13144C
Site Name: Little Lake Park
Market: LA/OC




EXHIBIT A
Legal Description
The Property is legally described as follows:
APN: 8009-023-900

All that certain real property located in the County of Los Angeles, State of California, being more
particularly described as follows:

THAT PORTION OF LOT 4 OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 6,

TOWNSHIP 3 SOUTH, RANGE 11 WEST, OF THE SAN BERNARDINO MERIDIAN

OF HOFFMAN’S SUBDIVISION OF THE RANCHO SANTA GERTRUDES, IN THE CITY OF SANTA FE
SPRINGS, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AS PER

MAP RECORDED IN BOOK I PAGE 502 OF MISCELLANEOUS RECORDS, IN THE

OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY, DESCRIBED AS

FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A POINT 295 FEET WEST OF THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID
LOT 4, THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF LOT 4 TO A
POINT 165 FEET EASTERLY FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT,
THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY IN A DIRECT LINE TO A POINT IN THE WESTERLY
LINE OF SAID LOT, DISTANT SOUTHERLY THEREON 4125 FEET FROM SAID
NORTHWEST CORNER; THENCE ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT TO
THE SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF, THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH
LINE OF SAID LOT TO A POINT THEREIN, DISTANT WESTERLY 295 FEET FROM
THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT; THENCE NORTHERLY IN A DIRECT
LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. '

EXCEPT THE NORTH 440,57 FEET OF SAID LAND MEASURED ALONG THE EAST LINE THEREOF.
ALSO EXCEPT THE EASTERLY 100 FEET THEREOF
THE ABOVE DESCRIBED LAND IS SHOWN AS A PORTION OF LOT “A’ OF

GLADHEIM, AS PER MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 51 PAGE 56 OF MAPS, RECORDS
OF SAID COUNTY. ‘

(End of Legal Description)

12 o

Site Number; LAI3144C AN
Site Name: Little Lake Park : ) ‘
Market: LA/OC




EXHIBIT B

The location of the Lease Area within the Property (together with access and utilities) is more
particularly described and depicted as follows:

See the attached drawings dated 05/24/10, Sheets A-1, A-2, A-3, and A-4, identified
with Site Information:- Little Lake Park, LA13144C. In addition to the
approximately 375 square feet depicted on the attached drawings, the Wireless
Facilities Area also includes space on the Replacement Light Standard for antennas
plus space inside the Replacement Light Standard for coax and conduit to connect the
equipment and the antennas, and any necessary airspace for antennas, stealthing, and
support structures as more particularly described in the attached Exhibit B.

Therefore, it is expressly agreed and understood by and between Landlord and Tenant that the
precise location of the Lease Area as shown on this Exhibit B may be modified by Tenant in order to
comply with and obtain necessary planning and/or zoning approvals, and any and all other approvals
necessary for Tenant’s intended use of the property. The Lease Area as described herein may
therefore be modified by Tenant to reflect the final engineering design. An amended Exhibit B (if
necessary) will be provided by Tenant and attached to the Lease in place of the existing Exhibit B, a
copy of which will be signed by a representative of Landlord after Landlord’s review priot to being
incorporated into the Lease.

However, it is expressly agreed and understood by and between the Landlord and Tenant that the
exact and precise location of the Tenant’s Wireless Facilities may be subject to review and approval
by the Planning and Development Department of the City of Santa Fe Springs pursuant to the
customary approval process for necessary permit issnance. Failure to obtain such approval by the
Tenant shall constitute a material breach of this Lease upon the installation or change in said
locations if not rectified within five (5) days of written notice from Landlord,

13

Site Number: LA13144C
Site Name; Little Lake Patk
Market: LA/OC




NOTES:

@ Wi T-romLE B X 20 G5 50, FT.) EUPTIENT
LEASE AREA LOCATED AT GRADE

(2 NoA T-110BILE 20— HIGH FIELD LIGHT POLE TO REPLACE
ST FELD LGHT FOR THE RETALLATION o (4)

POLE ONLY TO BE DEDICATED TO

TGt OF itiva £ opahcs.

REX T-MOBILE UNDERGROUND POKER AND TELLD
CONDUITS RUN FROM EXISTING UTILITY SQURCE

(PONT oOF CN{EC!‘IGI) TO NEW T-ICBILE LEASE AREA,
APFROXIMATELY TELLO RUN = 960%
APFROXIMATELY POWER RLN = 844

(2) HBA T-NOBILE POAER METER LOCATION.
REFER. TO ELECTRICAL SHEETS.

(5) DNSTING TRANSFORIER TPEISERE AND NEW T-TKBILE
P.OC. FOR POWER. REFER TD ELECTRICAL SHEETS.

DASTING POLE SIM4I9E AND NEM T-TCBILE P.OL. FOR
. REFER 7O ELECTRICAL SHEETS,

NEH EQUIPMENT
T-MOBILE  ESIRN

375 54, FT.

il
\f o oo e 1

g .

£/

VE il zal
R |

SITE PLAN

SCALE:

‘; ! E & 1300~

3 MACARTHUR PLACE, TUMT 1100
SANTA ANA, CA 0707

- PLANS PREPARED BY::

ARCHITECTS « N,

26170 ENTERPRISE %00
LAKE FOREST, CA. 92630
PHONE: (H9) Ti6~040
FAX: (349) 2374788

p=- CONSULTING GRCUP::

SEQUOIA

DEPLOTMENT SERVICES, INC
ONE VINTURA, SUITE 200
i CA 02816
NO. s DATE? ~DB?§’%§§—-—--BY:——-
S
1 |os/1aj0e| RSy
100% Z0°S
2 |05/18/09) cop"Review had

A\ |05/24/10|CLENT REVISIONS] PN

r—SITE INFORIATION:

LITTLE LAKE PARK
LA13144C

10300 PIONEER ELVD.
SANTA FE SPRINGS, CA 90670

SITE PLAN

- SHEET NUMBER:

A-1




NOTES:

@ NEW T-MCBILE B'0* X ﬁ‘w 4, FT.) EQUIPMENT
LEASE AREA LOCATED AT E LEVEL.

(2) WER T-HCBILE 800" HiGH FIELD LIGHT POLE TO REPLICE
EXISTING FIELD LIGHT FOR THE INSTALLATION oF (5)
PANEL ANTEOUAS, LIGHT POLE GLY T0 2E DEDICATED T0
THE CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS,

NEW T-HEBILE () ERICSSON R3S 206 ITTDXXR
ECINPITENT CABINETS B\ PAD

(4) ¥B TGN RAISED COMX PLATFORM. GEKERAL
CONTRACTOR TG VERIFT HEIGHT AND CONSTRUCTION
DES{GN N FIELD.

(5) NoH T-HKBILE KALL HOUNTED POWER AND TELCD
CABINETS,

NEM T-HOBILE EMERGENCT GEMERATOR RECEFTACLE
LOCATION. (GEMERATOR NOT INQUDED)

(2) NBH T-ICBILE T HiGH SPLIT FACE QU WAL
WITH STANDING SEAM ROOF.
(3) NEM T-THEBILE 2'-0* X 10-0° WIDE VENTS.

() NEH T-MCBILE 41 WIDE METAL UAT GUSEL
ACLESS GATE.

(@) HEH TIABILE UNDERGROUND COAX CABLE RUM.
APPROX. 435",

(@) NEt T-1BILE (2) FLLISH MOUNT PANEL ANTENNAS PER SECTOR
*3 STAGED O HEW FIELD LIGHT FOLE. AZFUTH » 340",

(@) NEX T-TBILE (2) FLUSH HOUNT PANEL ANTENNAS PER SECTOR
B! STACKED ON NEW FIELD LIGHT FOLE. AZIMUTH = 1227,

() Mo TGEILE (2) FLUSH HODIT PAMEL ANTBNAS PER SECTOR
" STACKED ON NEW FIELD LIGHT FOLE. ATIUTH = 240",

NEW T-MBILE (2) GPS ANTENNAS MOUNTET ON NEW
FIELD LIGHT.

() BxiaTING &' HIGH GHAIN LINK FENCE.

(@) BrsTiNG GRaSS AREA.

NER T-HOBILE UNDERGROUND POHER AND TELCO
CONDUITS RUN FROM EXISTING UTILITY SOURCE
(POINT OF CONNECTION) TO NEN T-MGRILE LEASE AREA.
APFROXMATELY 5T

() NEW T-IEBILE TN, 1000 WATT SECLRITY
LIGHT WITH PHOTOCELL.

£ASTING PROPERTY LINE

-7

-t ll
|
~ @
ey, \ 1
%“’2,: JI(
|
I
[
S L |
Y e 3
y-0* T e v
3, sde Ey
ol O Lo
' LI/ 1 LI

50

LEASE AREA

7-¢
/@)
\w‘

x—
-0

}l%
IE

H
,és,

A3}

L
A@Dr—-
Bg!

5’ Aot

/0

2

»

3 MACARTHUR PLACL. SUTTE 4100
SANTA AHA. CA 9707

(— PLANS PREPARED BY:

LAKE FOREST, CA. 92630
PHONE: (43) 716340
FAX: (94A) 2974788

r—~CONSULTING GROUP:

Vel

DEPLOYMENT SERVICES, INC,
ONE VENTURA, SUTE 200
IRVINE. CA 02818
NO, =y DATE e DES CRIPTION: ey

507 20
1 |08/12/09]  eop"Review

100% ZD'S
2 |05/18/09 FOR REVIEW

A\ |05/24/10 |cUENT Revisions

— STIE INFORMAT 107

LITTLE LAKE PARK

LA13144C

1904 PIONEER BLVD.
SANTA FE SPRINGS, CA 50670

rSEAL:

ENLARGED EQUIPMENT PLAN

[ seae |
AR | 1

e SHEET TITLE:

ENLARGED
EQUIPMENT PLAN

pe~ SHEET NUMBER:

A-2




P AGL.
e e e RO NEMUT-TIRILE PANEL ANTENMAS
RAD CENTER OF KEW T-TYBILE PANEL ANTENNAS TI-5* AGL
-5 AGL
____.____,.-______n‘ﬁo;wtsm&wﬂf_____d;
Q_MT_‘@EWW____“ 675 AGL
50 AGL
B T-HOBILE FLUSH MOURT PANEL ANTBNAS (2)
ANTBOUS PER SECTOR (3) SECTORS () ANTENNAS
TOTAL, TO BE STACKED ON NEW FIRLD LIGHT POLE.
R ‘é
NEW T-MOBILE 800 HiGH FIELD LIGHT POLE: FOREST,
wsrw'mczof() TS, RS, LG PUORE: (349) T30
OLY To £ CEDICATED 0 THE (T FAYX: (%49) 297-4728
T SANTA FE SPRH p= CONSULTING GROUP::
=
N T-HIOBILE I, 1000 WATT
e SEQUOIA
Q1L TrRLE SORTY LG _ = ot
50 AGL N et AT, ST 0
N TRING, CA 2018
T.0. NBX T-HZBILE EOUTHENT BULDING ROOE. ~ e
‘¢"—},_,. AGL - N ] 1 ]05/12/08|  op Review &
NI 100% 205
= M 2 |0s5/18/09
pTL.1D PR o Y B sSRE ] A /18/09|  cor meview | VY
T-0 A A\ |05/24/10 [ CLIENT REVISIONS| PN
GRADE 12VEL DM RS BERGEICT GERERATOR
P TEE RECEPTACLE LOCATION,

SOUTH ELEVATION

&-L8 NEW T-MCBILE LIGHT POLE ¢ LIGHT FIXTURES —~ ~
W AGL

RAD CEMTER OF NBW T-MOBILE PANEL AKTENNAS

o AGL
RAD CENTER OF NBY T-MOBILE PANEL ANTENNAS _ - D P s S IR AR &
#-0 AcL r— SITE INFORMATION:
MEW T-PKBILE FLUSH TIOUNT PANEL ANTENHAS
ANTERNAS PER SECTOR (3) SECTORS (6) pre=ac LA13144C
TOTAL TO BE STAZXED (N NEW FIELD LIGHT POLE.
10200 PIONEEA BLVD.
N’EH T-MEILE 87-0" HIGH FIELD LIGHT POLE. SANTA FE SPRINGS, CA 90870
0 REPLACE DISTING FELD LIGHT FOR THE
. RSTALATION OF (3) PAYE, ANTEIAG, LGHT —
POLE ONLT TO BE DEDICATED TO THE CITY
% OF SANTA FE SPRINGS,
NEW T-MOBILE MIN. 1000 WATT EXISTING TREE TYP.
SEQRRITY LIGHT WITH PHOTOCELL.
0, KEW T—(‘mllisw_ e
‘5' AGL,
NBH T-HEBILE 20" X 10-0" WIDE VENTS: -
B TITBLE T ) SPLT TACE 2 70, NEA T-MCBILE EQUIPYENT, BUILDING ROOF SRS
- QW WAL WTTH ST EBIN-T0 108" AGL
o e ARCHITECTURAL
0. EXISTING CHAN LINK FENCE
TODENGEAORRE - ——@ ELEVATIONS
"fé_m.‘”E LEVEL < Y
00" AGL Sre 3 A ; 3 2 ~SHEET NUMBER:
EAST ELEVATION | e | 2




B0 AGL

?Dl T—f‘mlu’. 7 HiG SPIJT FA
RALL WITH STANDING
To HATGI THE EXISTING BUILDINGS IN THE PARK

T.0. EASTING GIAIN LING FENCE
2 AGL

o J0. NBH T-PYBILE PANEL ANTENNAS

e AGL.
T.0. NEW T-MCBILE PAMEL ANTENNAS

6T-5* AGL

OF SANTA F= SPRINGS.

HEA T-HOBILE 80'~0" HIGH FIELD LIGHT POLE
0 REPLACE EXISTIHG AELD LIGHT FOR THE
INSTALLATION OF (6) PANEL ANTENNAS, LIGRT
POLE ONLY TD BE DEDICATED TO THE CITY

ANTENNAS PER SECTOR (3) SECTORS (6) ANTENNAS
TUTM.TOB=5TAD®GINB(HE.DUMPO.E

T.0. NBA T-MOBILE EQUIPTENT_BUILDING ROCF e
10-8* AGL

4 To. oA e o OIS
ﬁ-«r AGL.

I WACARTHUR PLAT. SUMTE 1100
SANTA N A 32107

r—PLANS PREPARED BY::

ARCHITECTS =~ INC,

26170 ENTERFRISE 2600

LAKE FOREST, CA. 9230

PHONE: (349) TI6-4340
FAX: (949) 297-4T88

—COPSULT!NG GROUP:
E YMENTS‘ERVIDS !NC.
!MNK. CA mm
No.—-mm«——-nzscnsofn Nz
1 os/12/08) RS,
100% ZD'S
2 |os/18/09 FOR. REVIEW
A\ |08/24/10 | CLENT REVISIONS

NORTH ELEVATICN

| rrr———

RAD CENTER OF HEW T-HOEILE PANEL ANTERNAS

T AGL
wfﬂ&@ﬁl@m O —
EOAGL

T.D. NEW T-HCEILE PANEL ANTENNAS

ND(T-r‘AﬂLE’uLSHMNTFMELm'BNL‘i )
ST 7 S () s (0 et LA13144C
TOTALTOEESTAO@NNB(HELD
10900 PIONEER BLVD.
SANTA FE SPRINGS, CA 90670
NEW T-MOBULE 80'-0" HIGH FIELD LIGHT POLE
TO REPLACE EXISTING FIELD LIGHT FOR THE —SEAL:
NSTALLATION OF (%) PANEL ANTENNAS. LIGHT
POLE ONLY 70 BE DEDICATED TO THE CITY
F SANTA SPRINGS.
NEW T-HOSILE EMERGENCY GENERATOR — SHEET TITLE::
RECEPTACLE LOCATION.
ARCHITECTURAL
T.0. PASTING QAN LINK FENCE
i ELEVATIONS
[~ SHEET NUMBER:
a'-a' AG.L
A-4
SCALE:
WEST ELEVATION | s i s e T i B

= SITE INFORMATION:

LITTLE LAKE PARK




PTI Site Reference: US-CA-1014 / Lakeland

FIRST AMENDMENT TO SITE LEASE WITH OPTION

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO SITE LEASE WITH OPTION (“First
Amendment”) is made on this ~ day of , 2020 (the “Effective Date”), by and
between the City of Santa Fe Springs, a municipal corporation (“Landlord”) and PTI US
Towers II, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as ultimate successor in interest to T-
Mobile West Corporation (“Tenant”).

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant, or their respective predecessors-in-interest,
entered into that certain Site Lease With Option, dated September 1%, 2010 (the “Lease”) for
the use of a certain portion of the Landlord’s Property and the lease of the Lease Area (as the
terms “Property” and “Lease Area” are defined in the Lease), for all purposes stated in the
Lease; and

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to amend the Lease Agreement to extend the
term of the Lease Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant, in their mutual interest, desire to amend and
modify the Lease as hereinafter set forth.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the agreements contained herein and other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

1. Ratification. Landlord and Tenant hereby ratify, confirm, and adopt the terms and
conditions of the Lease as amended herein, and further acknowledge and agree that
the Lease is in full force and effect, and neither Landlord and Tenant, as of the
Effective Date, is in breach under the terms of the Lease.

2. Term.

a. The first sentence of Section 3 of the Lease is hereby amended and restated in
its entirety to read: “Following the Initial Term, Tenant shall have the right to
extend this Lease for five (5) additional five-year terms (each a “Renewal
Term”) on the same terms and conditions as set forth herein.”

b. Landlord and Tenant acknowledge and agree that (i) the Lease has been in
effect since the Commencement Date (as defined in the Lease), and (ii) as of
the Effective Date of this First Amendment, the current Renewal Term, which
is the first of five (5) Renewal Terms, expires on January 17, 2026, such that
the remaining maximum term of the Lease as amended by this First
Amendment, inclusive of all remaining Renewal Terms, is twenty (20) years
from January 17, 2026.

3. Tenant’s Notice Address. Landlord and tenant acknowledge and agree that the notice
address for Tenant with respect to the Lease shall be as follows:




PTI Site Reference: US-CA-1014 / Lakeland

PTI US Towers II, LLC
Attention: Legal Department
999 Yamato Road, Suite 100
Boca Raton, Florida 33431

PTI Site ID Reference: CA-1014

4. Miscellaneous. Except as otherwise provided for in this Amendment, the Lease shall
remain in full force and effect in accordance with the original terms of the Lease.
Unless otherwise provided herein, all defined terms shall have the same meaning as
ascribed to such terms in the Lease. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency
between the terms of this First Amendment and the Lease, the terms of this First
Amendment shall govern and control. This First Amendment may be executed by
facsimile and in any number of counterparts, any of which need not contain the
signature of more than one party, but all of which shall together constitute one and the
same instrument. This First Amendment shall become binding when one or more
counterparts hereof, individually or taken together, shall bear the signatures of all of
the parties reflected hereon as the signatories and shall have been delivered to all
parties. The parties understand, acknowledge and agree that execution and delivery
of this First Amendment by facsimile or as a “.pdf” shall be deemed for all purposes
to be enforceable as an original.

[Signature Page Follows)




PTI Site Reference: US-CA-1014 / Lakeland

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this First Amendment to be executed
as of Effective Date.

TENANT: LANDLORD:

PTI US Towers II, LLC City of Santa Fe Springs
a Delaware limited liability company a municipal corporation
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:




ITEM NO. 8









DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

081419-SHI

to be provided the associated schedule and price and any special conditions applicable to that
SOW.

All Equipment and Products provided under this Contract must be new/current model. Vendor
may offer close-out or refurbished Equipment or Products if they are clearly indicated in
Vendor’s product and pricing list. Unless agreed to by the Member in advance, Equipment or
Products must be delivered as operational to the Member’s site.

This Contract offers an indefinite quantity of sales, and while substantial volume is anticipated,
sales and sales volume are not guaranteed.

B. LAWS AND REGULATIONS. All Equipment, Products, or Services must comply fully with
applicable federal laws and regulations, and with the laws of the state or province in which the
Equipment, Products, or Services are sold.

C. WARRANTY. Vendor warrants that all Equipment, Products, and Services furnished are free
from liens and encumbrances. Vendor warrants that the Services are free from material defects
for ninety (90) days commencing with final acceptance of the Services unless otherwise
specified in a SOW (the “Warranty Period”). Member agrees to look solely to the manufacturer
to reach a resolution in any dispute over warranty terms with the manufacturer. Any
manufacturer’s warranty that is provided to Vendor from the manufacturer of the Product will
be passed on to the Member. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR
ANY ORDER ISSUED, HEREUNDER VENDOR HEREBY DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES,
EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY WARRANTY OF
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, WARRANTY OF
NONINFRINGEMENT, OR ANY WARRANTY RELATING TO THIRD PARTY SERVICES OR PRODUCTS.
THE DISCLAIMER CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH DOES NOT AFFECT THE TERMS OF ANY
WARRANTY PROVIDED BY A MANUFACTURER.

3. PRICING

All Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract will be priced as stated in Vendor’s
Proposal.

Regardless of the payment method chosen by the Member, the total cost associated with any
purchase option of the Equipment, Products, or Services must always be disclosed in the pricing
quote to the applicable Member at the time of purchase.

When providing pricing quotes to Members, all pricing quoted must reflect a Member’s total
cost of acquisition. This means that the quoted cost is for delivered Equipment, Products, and
Services, and includes all costs to the Member’s requested delivery location.

A. SHIPPING AND SHIPPING COSTS. All delivered Equipment and Products must be properly
packaged. Damaged Equipment and Products may be rejected. If the damage is not readily

Rev. 4/2019




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

081418-SHI

apparent at the time of delivery, Vendor may permit the Equipment and Products to be
returned within a reasonable time at no cost to Sourcewell or its Members, in accordance with
Vendor’s Return Policy at www.shi.com/returnpolicy. Members reserve the right to inspect the
Equipment and Products within 3 business days after delivery where circumstances or
conditions prevent effective inspection of the Equipment and Products at the time of delivery.

Vendor must arrange for and pay for the return shipment on Equipment and Products that arrive
in a defective or inoperable condition subject to Vendor’s Return Policy.

In the event of the delivery of nonconforming Equipment and Products, the Member will notify
the Vendor as soon as possible and the Vendor will replace nonconforming Equipment and
Products with conforming Equipment and Products that are acceptable to the Member subject
to Vendor’s Return Policy.

B. SALES TAX. Each Member is responsible for supplying the Vendor with valid tax-exemption
certification(s). When ordering, Members must indicate if it is a tax-exempt entity.

C. HOT LIST PRICING. At any time during this Contract, Vendor may offer a specific selection
of Equipment, Products, or Services at discounts greater than those listed in the Contract.
When Vendor determines it will offer Hot List Pricing, it must be submitted electronically to
Sourcewell in a line-item format. Equipment, Products, or Services may be added or removed
from the Hot List at any time through a Sourcewell Price and Product Change Form as defined
in Article 4 below.

Hot List program and pricing may also be used to discount and liquidate close-out and
discontinued Equipment and Products as long as those close-out and discontinued items are
clearly identified as such. Current ordering process and administrative fees apply. Hot List
Pricing must be published and made available to all Members.

4. PRODUCT AND PRICING CHANGE REQUESTS

Vendor may request Equipment, Product, or Service changes, additions, or deletions at any
time. All requests must be made in writing by submitting a signed Sourcewell Price and Product
Change Request Form to the assigned Sourcewell Contract Administrator. This form is available
from the assigned Sourcewell Contract Administrator. At a minimum, the request must:

¢ |dentify the applicable Sourcewell contract number

e Clearly specify the requested change

e Provide sufficient detail to justify the requested change

¢ Individually list all Equipment, Products, or Services affected by the requested
change, along with the requested change (e.g., addition, deletion, price change)

e Include a complete restatement of pricing documentation in Microsoft Excel
with the effective date of the modified pricing, or product addition or deletion. The

Rev. 4/2019




DocusSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

081419-SHI

new pricing restatement must include all Equipment, Products, and Services offered,
even for those items where pricing remains unchanged.

A fully executed Sourcewell Price and Product Request Form will be become an
amendment to this Contract and be incorporated by reference.

5. MEMBERSHIP, CONTRACT ACCESS, AND MEMBER REQUIREMENTS

A. MEMBERSHIP. Membership in Sourcewell is open to public and nonprofit entities across the
United States and Canada; such as municipal, state/province, K-12 and higher education, tribal
government, and other public entities.

The benefits of this Contract should be available to all Members that can legally access the
Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract. A Member’s authority to access this
Contract is determined through its cooperative purchasing, interlocal, or joint powers laws. Any
entity accessing benefits of this Contract will be considered a Service Member of Sourcewell
during such time of access. Vendor understands that a Member’s use of this Contract is at the
Member’s sole convenience and Members reserve the right to obtain like Equipment, Products,
or Services from any other source.

Vendor is responsible for familiarizing its sales and service forces with Sourcewell membership
requirements and documentation and will encourage potential members to join Sourcewell.
Sourcewell reserves the right to add and remove Members to its roster during the term of this
Contract.

B. PUBLIC FACILITIES. Vendor’s employees may be required to perform work at government-
owned facilities, including schools. Vendor’s employees and agents must conduct themselves in
a professional manner while on the premises, and in accordance with Member policies and
procedures, and all applicable laws.

6. MEMBER ORDERING AND PURCHASE ORDERS

A. PURCHASE ORDERS AND PAYMENT. To access the contracted Equipment, Products, or
Services under this Contract, Member must clearly indicate to Vendor that it intends to access
this Contract; however, order flow and procedure will be developed jointly between Sourcewell
and Vendor. Typically a Member will issue a purchase order directly to Vendor. Members may
use their own forms for purchase orders, but it should clearly note the applicable Sourcewell
contract number. Members will be solely responsible for payment and Sourcewell will have no
liability for any unpaid invoice of any Member.

B. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS. Additional terms and conditions to a purchase order
may be negotiated between a Member and Vendor, such as job or industry-specific
requirements, legal requirements (such as affirmative action or immigration status
requirements), or specific local policy requirements. Any negotiated additional terms and

Rev. 4/2019




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

081419-SHI

conditions must never be less favorable to the Member than what is contained in Vendor’s
Proposal.

C. PERFORMANCE BOND. If requested by a Member, Vendor will provide a performance bond
that meets the requirements set forth in the Member’s purchase order.

D. SPECIALIZED SERVICE REQUIREMENTS. In the event that the Member requires service or
specialized performance requirements (such as e-commerce specifications, specialized delivery
requirements, or other specifications and requirements) not addressed in this Contract, the
Member and the Vendor may enter into a separate, standalone agreement, apart from this
Contract. Sourcewell, including its agents and employees, will not be made a party to a claim
for breach of such agreement.

E. TERMINATION OF PURCHASE ORDERS. Members may terminate a purchase order, in
whole or in part, immediately upon notice to Vendor in the event of any of the following
events:

1. The Member fails to receive funding or appropriation from its governing body at
levels sufficient to pay for the goods to be purchased;

2. Federal or state laws or regulations prohibit the purchase or change the
Member’s requirements; or

3. Vendor commits any material breach of this Contract or the additional terms
agreed to between the Vendor and a Member.

F. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. The governing law and venue for any action related to a
Member’s purchase order will be determined by the Member making the purchase.

7. CUSTOMER SERVICE

A. PRIMARY ACCOUNT REPRESENTATIVE. Vendor will assign an Account Representative to
Sourcewell for this Contract and must provide prompt notice to Sourcewell if that person is
changed. The Account Representative will be responsible for:

e Maintenance and management of this Contract;
e Timely response to all Sourcewell and Member inquiries; and
e Business reviews to Sourcewell and Members, if applicable.

B. BUSINESS REVIEWS. Vendor must perform a minimum of one business review with
Sourcewell per contract year. The business review will cover sales to members, pricing and
contract terms, administrative fees, supply issues, customer issues, and any other necessary
information.

8. REPORT ON CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY AND ADMINISTRATIVE FEE PAYMENT

Rev. 4/2019




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

081419-SHI

A. CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY REPORT. Each calendar quarter, Vendor must provide a contract
sales activity report (Report) to the Sourcewell Contract Administrator assigned to this
Contract. A Report must be provided regardless of the number or amount of sales during that
quarter (i.e., if there are no sales, Vendor must submit a report indicating no sales were made).

The Report must contain the following fields:

e Customer Name (e.g., City of Staples Highway Department);
e Customer Physical Street Address;

e Customer City;

e (Customer State;

e Customer Zip Code;

e Customer Contact Name;

e Customer Contact Email Address;

e Customer Contact Telephone Number;

e Sourcewell Assigned Entity/Member Number;

e |tem Purchased Description;

e |tem Purchased Price;

e Sourcewell Administrative Fee Applied; and

e Date Purchase was invoiced/sale was recognized as revenue by Vendor.

B. ADMINISTRATIVE FEE. In consideration for the support and services provided by Sourcewell,
the Vendor will pay an administrative fee to Sourcewell on all Equipment, Products, and
Services provided to Members. The Vendor will submit a check payable to Sourcewell for the
percentage of administrative fee stated in the Proposal multiplied by the total sales of all
Equipment, Products, and Services purchased by Members under this Contract during each
calendar quarter. Payments should note the Sourcewell-assigned contract number in the memo
and must be mailed to the address above “Attn: Accounts Receivable.” Payments must be
received no later than forty-five (45) calendar days after the end of each calendar quarter.

Vendor agrees to cooperate with Sourcewell in auditing transactions under this Contract to
ensure that the administrative fee is paid on all items purchased under this Contract.

In the event the Vendor is delinquent in any undisputed administrative fees, Sourcewell
reserves the right to cancel this Contract and reject any proposal submitted by the Vendor in
any subsequent solicitation. In the event this Contract is cancelled by either party prior to the
Contract’s expiration date, the administrative fee payment will be due no more than thirty (30)
days from the cancellation date.

Rev. 4/2019




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

081419-SHI

9. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Sourcewell's Authorized Representative is its Chief Procurement Officer.

Vendor’s Authorized Representative is the person named in the Vendor’s Proposal. If Vendor’s
Authorized Representative changes at any time during this Contract, Vendor must promptly
notify Sourcewell in writing.

10. ASSIGNMENT, AMENDMENTS, WAIVER, AND CONTRACT COMPLETE

A. ASSIGNMENT. Neither the Vendor nor Sourcewell may assign or transfer any rights or
obligations under this Contract without the prior consent of the parties and a fully executed
assignment agreement. Such consent will not be unreasonably withheld.

B. AMENDMENTS. Any amendment to this Contract must be in writing and will not be effective
until it has been fully executed by the parties.

C. WAIVER. If either party fails to enforce any provision of this Contract, that failure does not
waive the provision or the right to enforce it.

D. CONTRACT COMPLETE. This Contract contains all negotiations and agreements between
Sourcewell and Vendor. No other understanding regarding this Contract, whether written or
oral, may be used to bind either party.

E. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. The relationship of the parties is one of independent
contractors, each free to exercise judgment and discretion with regard to the conduct of their
respective businesses. This Contract does not create a partnership, joint venture, master-
servant, principal-agent, or any other relationship.

11. LIABILITY

Vendor must indemnify, save, and hold Sourcewell and its Members, including their agents and
employees, harmless from any third party claims or causes of action, including attorneys’ fees,
arising out of the Vendor’s negligence, willful misconduct, or violation of law, in the course of
the performance of this Contract by the Vendor or its agents or employees; this indemnification
includes injury or death to person(s) or property alleged to have been caused by Vendor under
this Contract.

NEITHER PARTY WILL BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO LOSS OF OR DAMAGE TO DATA,
LOSS OF ANTICIPATED REVENUE OR PROFITS, WORK STOPPAGE OR IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER
ASSETS, WHETHER OR NOT FORESEEABLE AND WHETHER OR NOT A PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED
OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.

Rev. 4/2019




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

081419-SHI

NEITHER PARTY’S TOTAL CUMULATIVE LIABILITY TO THE OTHER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
AGREEMENT WHETHER IN CONTRACT TORT OR OTHER THEORY WILL EXCEED THE TOTAL
AMOUNT OF FEES ACTUALLY PAID OR PAYABLE BY SOURCEWELL TO VENDOR UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT FOR THE YEAR PREVIOUS TO THE INCIDENT WHICH GAVE CAUSE FOR SUCH
LIABILITY.

12. AUDITS

Sourcewell reserves the right to review the financial books, records, documents, and
accounting procedures and practices of the Vendor relevant to this Contract for a minimum of
six (6) years from the end of this Contract upon thirty (30) days’ advance notice to Vendor.
Audits may not take place more than once during a twelve (12) month period. This clause
extends to Members as it relates to business conducted by that Member under this Contract.

13. GOVERNMENT DATA PRACTICES

Vendor and Sourcewell must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act,
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 13, as it applies to all data provided by or provided to Sourcewell
under this Contract and as it applies to all data created, collected, received, stored, used,
maintained, or disseminated by the Vendor under this Contract.

If the Vendor receives a request to release the data referred to in this article, the Vendor must
immediately notify Sourcewell and Sourcewell will assist with how the Vendor should respond
to the request.

14. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

As applicable, Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Sourcewell and its Members
against any and all suits, claims, judgments, and costs instituted or recovered against
Sourcewell or Members by any person on account of the use of any Services by Sourcewell or
its Members performed by Vendor in violation of applicable patent or copyright laws.

15. PUBLICITY, MARKETING, AND ENDORSEMENT

A. PUBLICITY. Any publicity regarding the subject matter of this Contract must not be released
without prior written approval from the Authorized Representatives. Publicity includes notices,
informational pamphlets, press releases, research, reports, signs, and similar public notices
prepared by or for the Vendor individually or jointly with others, or any subcontractors, with
respect to the program, publications, or services provided resulting from this Contract.

B. MARKETING. Any direct advertising, marketing, or offers with Members must be approved

by Sourcewell. Materials should be sent to the Sourcewell Contract Administrator assigned to
this Contract.

Rev. 4/2019




DocuSign Envelope 1D: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

081419-SHI

C. ENDORSEMENT. The Vendor must not claim that Sourcewell endorses its Equipment,
Products, or Services.

16. GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE

Minnesota law governs this Contract. Venue for all legal proceedings out of this Contract, or its
breach, must be in the appropriate state court in Todd County or federal court in Fergus Falls,
Minnesota.

17. FORCE MAJEURE

Neither party to this Contract will be held responsible for delay or default caused by acts of God
or other conditions that are beyond that party’s reasonable control. A party defaulting under
this provision must provide the other party prompt written notice of the default.

18. SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Contract is found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void then both
Sourcewell and Vendor will be relieved of all obligations arising under such provisions. If the
remainder of this Contract is capable of performance, it will not be affected by such declaration
or finding and must be fully performed.

19. PERFORMANCE, DEFAULT, AND REMEDIES

A. PERFORMANCE. During the term of this Contract, the parties will monitor performance and
address unresolved contract issues as follows:

1. Notification. The parties must promptly notify each other of any known dispute
and work in good faith to resolve such dispute within a reasonable period of time. If
necessary, Sourcewell and the Vendor will jointly develop a short briefing document
that describes the issue(s), relevant impact, and positions of both parties.

2. Escalation. If parties are unable to resolve the issue in a timely manner, as
specified above, either Sourcewell or Vendor may escalate the resolution of the issue to
a higher level of management. The Vendor will have thirty (30} calendar days to cure an
outstanding issue.

3. Performance while Dispute is Pending. Notwithstanding the existence of a
dispute, the Vendor must continue without delay to carry out all of its responsibilities
under the Contract that are not affected by the dispute. If the Vendor fails to continue
without delay to perform its responsibilities under the Contract, in the accomplishment
of all undisputed work, Sourcewell may terminate this Contract as stated herein.

B. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. Either of the following constitutes cause to declare this Contract,
or any Member order under this Contract, in default:

Rev. 4/2019




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

081419-SHI

1. Nonperformance of contractual requirements, or
2. A material breach of any term or condition of this Contract.

Written notice of default and a reasonable opportunity to cure must be issued by the party
claiming default. If the default remains after the opportunity for cure, the non-defaulting party
may:

e Exercise any remedy provided by law or equity, or
e Terminate the Contract or any portion thereof, including any orders issued
against the Contract.

20. INSURANCE

A. REQUIREMENTS. At its own expense, Vendor must maintain insurance policy(ies) in effect at
all times during the performance of this Contract with insurance company(ies) licensed or
authorized to do business in the State of Minnesota having an “AM BEST” rating of A- or better,
with coverage and limits of insurance not less than the following:

1. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability.
Workers’ Compensation: As required by any applicable law or regulation.
Employer's Liability Insurance: must be provided in amounts not less than listed below:
Minimum limits:
$500,000 each accident for bodily injury by accident
$500,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease
$500,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease

2. Commercial General Liability Insurance. Vendor will maintain insurance covering
its operations, with coverage on an occurrence basis, and must be subject to terms no
less broad than the Insurance Services Office (“1SO”) Commercial General Liability Form
CG0001 (2001 or newer edition). At a minimum, coverage must include liability arising
from premises, operations, bodily injury and property damage, independent
contractors, products-completed operations including construction defect, contractual
liability, blanket contractual liability, and personal injury and advertising injury. All
required limits, terms and conditions of coverage must be maintained during the term
of this Contract.

Minimum Limits:

$1,000,000 each occurrence Bodily Injury and Property Damage

$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury

$2,000,000 aggregate for Products-Completed operations

$2,000,000 general aggregate

3. Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance. During the term of this Contract,
Vendor will maintain insurance covering all owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles

10
Rev. 4/2019




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

081419-SHI

in limits of liability not less than indicated below. The coverage must be subject to terms
no less broad than ISO Business Auto Coverage Form CA 0001 (2010 edition or newer).
Minimum Limits:
$1,000,000 each accident, combined single limit

4. Umbrella Insurance. During the term of this Contract, Vendor will maintain
umbrella coverage over Workers’ Compensation, Commercial General Liability, and
Commercial Automobile.

Minimum Limits:

$2,000,000

5. Professional/Technical, Errors and Omissions, and/or Miscellaneous Liability.
During the term of this Contract, Vendor will maintain coverage for all claims the Vendor
may become legally obligated to pay resulting from any actual or alleged negligent act,
error, or omission related to Vendor’s professional services required under this
Contract.

Minimum Limits:

$2,000,000 per claim or event

$2,000,000 — annual aggregate

6. Network Security and Privacy Liability Insurance. During the term of this
Contract, Vendor will maintain coverage for network security and privacy liability. The
coverage may be endorsed on another form of liability coverage or written on a
standalone policy. The insurance must cover claims which may arise from failure of
Vendor’s security resulting in, but not limited to, computer attacks, unauthorized
access, disclosure of not public data — including but not limited to, confidential or
private information, transmission of a computer virus, or denial of service.
- Minimum limits:
$2,000,000 per occurrence
$2,000,000 annual aggregate

Failure of Vendor to maintain the required insurance will constitute a material breach entitling
Sourcewell to immediately terminate this Contract for default.

B. CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE. Prior to commencing under this Contract, Vendor must
furnish to Sourcewell a certificate of insurance, as evidence of the insurance required under this
Contract. Prior to expiration of the policy(ies), renewal certificates must be mailed to
Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 56479 or sent to the
Sourcewell Contract Administrator assigned to this Contract. The certificates must be signed by
a person authorized by the insurer(s) to bind coverage on their behalf. All policies must include
there will be no cancellation, suspension, non-renewal, or reduction of coverage without thirty
(30) days’ prior written notice to the Vendor.

11
Rev. 4/2019




DocusSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

081419-SHI

Upon request, Vendor must provide to Sourcewell copies of applicable policies and
endorsements, within ten (10) days of a request. Failure to request certificates of insurance by
Sourcewell, or failure of Vendor to provide certificates of insurance, in no way limits or relieves
Vendor of its duties and responsibilities in this Contract.

C. ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT AND PRIMARY AND NON-CONTRIBUTORY
INSURANCE CLAUSE. Vendor agrees to name Sourcewell and its Members, including their
officers, agents, and employees, as an additional insured under the Vendor’s commercial
general liability insurance policy with respect to liability arising out of activities, “operations,” or
“work” performed by or on behalf of Vendor, and products and completed operations of
Vendor. The policy provision(s) or endorsement(s) must further provide that coverage is
primary and not excess over or contributory with any other valid, applicable, and collectible
insurance or self-insurance in force for the additional insureds.

D. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION. Vendor waives and must require (by endorsement or
otherwise) all its insurers to waive subrogation rights against Sourcewell and other additional
insureds for losses paid under the insurance policies required by this Contract or other
insurance applicable to the Vendor or its subcontractors. The waiver must apply to all
deductibles and/or self-insured retentions applicable to the required or any other insurance
maintained by the Vendor or its subcontractors. Where permitted by law, Vendor must require
similar written express waivers of subrogation and insurance clauses from each of its
subcontractors.

E. UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY. The limits required by this Contract can be met by either
providing a primary policy or in combination with umbrella/excess liability policy(ies).

F. SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS. Any self-insured retention in excess of $10,000 is subject to
Sourcewell’s approval.

21. COMPLIANCE

A. LAWS AND REGULATIONS. All Services provided under this Contract must comply fully with
applicable federal laws and regulations, and with the laws in the states and provinces in which
the Services are sold.

B. LICENSES. Vendor must maintain a valid status on all required federal, state, and local
licenses, bonds, and permits required for the operation of the business that the Vendor
conducts with Sourcewell and Members.

22. BANKRUPTCY, DEBARMENT, OR SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION

Vendor certifies and warrants that it is not in bankruptcy or that it has previously disclosed in
writing certain information to Sourcewell related to bankruptcy actions. If at any time during

12
Rev. 4/2019




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

081419-SHI

this Contract Vendor declares bankruptcy, Vendor must immediately notify Sourcewell in
writing.

Vendor certifies and warrants that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred,
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from programs
operated by the State of Minnesota, the United States federal government, or any Member.
Vendor certifies and warrants that neither it nor its principals have been convicted of a criminal
offense related to the subject matter of this Contract. Vendor further warrants that it will
provide immediate written notice to Sourcewell if this certification changes at any time.

23. PROVISIONS FOR NON-UNITED STATES FEDERAL ENTITY PROCUREMENTS UNDER
UNITED STATES FEDERAL AWARDS OR OTHER AWARDS

Members that use United States federal grant or FEMA funds to purchase goods or services
from this Contract may be subject to additional requirements including the procurement
standards of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. § 200. Members may also require additional requirements based
on specific funding specifications. Within this Article, all references to “federal” should be
interpreted to mean the United States federal government. The following list only applies when
a Member accesses Vendor’s Equipment, Products, or Services with United States federal
funds.

A. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. Except as otherwise provided under 41 C.F.R. § 60, all
contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 C.F.R. § 60-
1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 C.F.R. §60-1.4(b), in
accordance with Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319,
12935, 3 C.F.R. §, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending
Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” and implementing
regulations at 41 C.F.R. § 60, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal
Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.” The equal opportunity clause is incorporated
herein by reference.

B. DAVIS-BACON ACT, AS AMENDED (40 U.S.C. § 3141-3148). When required by federal
program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-
federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §
3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5,
“Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted
Construction”). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to
laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage
determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay
wages not less than once a week. The non-federal entity must place a copy of the current
prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The
decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the
wage determination. The non-federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to

13
Rev. 4/2019




DocuSign Envelope ID: 8572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

081419-SHI

the federal awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with
the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor
regulations (29 C.F.R. § 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work
Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States”). The Act provides that
each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person
employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the
compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-federal entity must report

all suspected or reported violations to the federal awarding agency. Vendor must be in
compliance with all applicable Davis-Bacon Act provisions.

C. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT (40 U.S.C. § 3701-3708). Where
applicable, all contracts awarded by the non-federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve
the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40
U.S.C. § 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5).
Under 40 U.S.C. § 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of
every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess
of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of
not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40
hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. § 3704 are applicable to construction
work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or
under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements
do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the
open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. This provision is
hereby incorporated by reference into this Contract. Vendor certifies that during the term of an
award for all contracts by Sourcewell resulting from this procurement process, Vendor must
comply with applicable requirements as referenced above.

D. RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT. If the federal award
meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 C.F.R. § 401.2(a) and the recipient or
subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization
regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental,
developmental, or research work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient
must comply with the requirements of 37 C.F.R. § 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative
Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. Vendor
certifies that during the term of an award for all contracts by Sourcewell resulting from this
procurement process, Vendor must comply with applicable requirements as referenced above.

E. CLEAN AIR ACT (42 U.S.C. § 7401-7671Q.) AND THE FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL
ACT (33 U.S.C. § 1251-1387). Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 require
the non-federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations
issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401- 7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. § 1251- 1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal
awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Vendor

14
Rev. 4/2019




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

081419-SHI

certifies that during the term of this Contract will comply with applicable requirements as
referenced above.

F. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDERS 12549 AND 12689). A contract award
(see 2 C.F.R. § 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government wide exclusions
in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 C.F.R.
§180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 C.F.R. § 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3
C.F.R. § 1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names
of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared
ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. Vendor
certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation by any federal
department or agency.

G. BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT, AS AMENDED (31 U.S.C. § 1352). Vendors must file
any required certifications. Vendors must not have used federal appropriated funds to pay any
person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member
of Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant, or any other award
covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Vendors must disclose any lobbying with non-federal funds that
takes place in connection with obtaining any federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded
from tier to tier up to the non-federal award. Vendors must file all certifications and disclosures
required by, and otherwise comply with, the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. §
1352).

H. RECORD RETENTION REQUIREMENTS. To the extent applicable, Vendor must comply with
the record retention requirements detailed in 2 C.F.R. § 200.333. The Vendor further certifies
that it will retain all records as required by 2 C.F.R. § 200.333 for a period of three (3) years
after grantees or subgrantees submit final expenditure reports or quarterly or annual financial
reports, as applicable, and all other pending matters are closed.

I.  ENERGY POLICY AND CONSERVATION ACT COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Vendor
must comply with the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are
contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy
and Conservation Act.

J.  BUY AMERICAN PROVISIONS COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Vendor must comply
with all applicable provisions of the Buy American Act. Purchases made in accordance with the
Buy American Act must follow the applicable procurement rules calling for free and open
competition.

K. ACCESS TO RECORDS (2 C.F.R. § 200.336). Vendor agrees that duly authorized
representatives of a federal agency must have access to any books, documents, papers and
records of Vendor that are directly pertinent to Vendor’s discharge of its obligations under this

15
Rev. 4/2019







DocusSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

RFP#081419 - Technology Catalog Solutions

Vendor Details

Company Name:

Address:

Contact:
Email:
Phone:
HST#:

Submission Details

Created On:
Submitted On:
Submitted By:
Email:

Transaction #:

Submitter's IP Address:

SHI International
290 Davidson Ave.

Somerset, NJ 08873
Aimee Ballenger
aimee_ballenger@shi.com
678-708-3906
22-3009648

Thursday June 27, 2019 20:01:55
Tuesday August 13, 2019 20:57:55

Aimee Ballenger
aimee_ballenger@shi.com
de73d79e-ac55-45de-8aa6-01abc94b3ead
161.69.112.12




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

Specifications

Proposer Identity & Authorized Representatives

Line

> = *x:
{tem Question Response
1 Proposer Legal Name (and applicable |SHI International Corp.
dibla, if any):
2 Proposer Address: 290 Davidson Ave
Somerset, New Jersey 08873
3 Proposer website address: https:/iww.shi.com/
4 Proposer's Authorized Representative ‘| Aimee . Ballenger
(name, title, -address, ‘email ‘address ‘& :{Public ‘Program :Manager
phane) (The representative must aimee_ballenger@shi.com
have . authority to 'sign the “Proposer's .|{678-708-3906
Assurance -of ‘Compliance™ ‘on - behalf
of the Proposer):
5 Proposer's primary contact for this Aimee Ballenger
proposal (name, title, address, email Public Program Manager
address & phone): aimee_ballenger@shi.com
678-708-3906
6 Proposer's other ‘contacts for -this Meghan. Flisakowski
proposal, if ‘any. (name, title, ‘address, | Public Sector. Program :Manager
email .address :&.phone): Meghan_flisakowski@shi.com
512-317-0799

Company Information and Financial Strength

Line
ftem
7

Question

Response*

Provide a brief history of your company, including
your company’s core values, business philosophy,
and industry longevity related to the requested
equipment, products or services.

This past July, SHI celebrated our 30th Anniversary at our annual Global Sales Conference.
The theme of that conference was Purpose and Passion, a theme that speaks to both our
business philosophy and our core values. We define success not only quantitatively but also
by the quality of our relationships. While we are proud to have topped $10 billion in revenue
in 2018, largely because of our financially strong and stable business model, we also
recognize that our Purpose and our Passion have cultivated our longevity within the industry;
that our growing success stems directly from our purpose: to deliver exceptional value and
experience as we help customers select, deploy, and manage their technology. And that our
passion, which remains focused on forging and nurturing relationships with our customers and
with our colleagues and partners, will sustain us for another 30 years as an industry leader.

Since 1989, SHI has persistently maintained our small-company feel by retaining our
leadership personnel (many of whom have been with the company since its inception) and by
empowering our 4,000+ employees to collaborate with customers to resolve IT problems and
needs directly, shoulder to shoulder. With the largest field sales organization of any
technology reseller, our visibility across all Public Sector verticals (K12, Higher Ed, State and
Local Government, Federal, and Healthcare initiatives), boasts 175 field AEs, working and
living in the territories they support, and 170 telesales specialists, who cater to the needs of
small and medium public entities and who dedicate their energy every day to customer
success.

As the largest privately-owned, M/WBE organization in the country, we are proud of our spirit
of community and partnership and in our ability to facilitate IT solutions, services, and
hardware and software products for our national and global clients. Loyalty, trustworthiness,
and reliability are paramount qualities of SHI, and we offer those qualities, in tandem with our
Purpose and Passion, to Sourcewell with an eagemess to help your Members work more
efficiently and effectively.

We are committed to providing Sourcewell members the most advantageous pricing models
and the most exceptional values; we recognize that our role as a Sourcewell affiliate is to
support your Members, providing expert best practices to keep their IT resources safe,
secure, and operational, 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

8

Provide ‘a detailed description of the ‘products
and . services that you are offering in:your
proposal.

We offer:‘our complete catalogue “of products and services to Sourcewellmembers. ‘Providing
a vendor-neutral .approach to -help customers find the right ‘technology that meets every
specific requirement of their IT environment, one of our greatest strengths iis our-ability -to
provide tremendous depth .and ‘breadth in. choosing the ideal ‘software, "hardware, -Cloud, -and
other products and services for each individual ‘Sourcewell: member.

In :fact, SHI's. current .catalogue ‘includes -tens. of thousands of hardware, software, ‘and.other
product partners. Generally, : SHI ‘is-able to sell between 75%-100% of:our. partners’ product
lines, and ‘we offer a wide :range -of services :delivered. directly :by our internal teams, by the
manufacturer: directly, or by ‘subcontracting to a third-party, vetted ‘partner.

In ‘addition, SHI provides Sourcewell members with full:IT solutions, from commodity software
and hardware to complete, end-to-end -datacenter solutions. We ‘specialize ‘in T solutions that
fit ‘precisely -with “our-customers’ needs :and ‘wants, and Sourcewell’s members :will _benefit from
our ‘experience and breadth of knowledge to help design, implement, and optimize their. IT
ecosystem.

It's ‘worth .noting that, over the past -decade, IT ‘has changed'dramatically. ‘Although there iis
still “a definite need: for. commodity ‘products, ‘attention has shifted more -and ‘more to"building
comprehensive solutions ‘that ‘will ‘solve ‘customers’ needs. :In:response ‘to.this ‘shift, and
working from:our customer-centered: foundation, SHI developed our Enterprise Solutions Group
to ‘include solution-based .support. This team ‘is comprised of .over: 150 ‘peaple who hold
3000+ certifications -for various -products -and - solutions. :Their ‘goal is to ‘address -Sourcewell
Members'-needs, - help . them acquire ‘the ‘right technology, ‘and facilitate -adoptionof :that
technology inta :their ‘-own -unique environment.” Our Enterprise -Solutions -Group, -like all .of SHI,
is ‘vendor-neutral and.uses its range of .experience ‘to help -tailor: conversations :that ‘are
optimal for ‘each -Sourcewell ‘member.. We engage customers :during ‘the strategy and :solution
design .of ‘a ‘project :and -assist ‘with :activities ‘like deliberate ‘planning, assessments, white
boarding, proof of concepts, ‘and obtaining ‘demo - units.

Our -purpose is -to provide the best ‘overall value to each Sourcewell member, and we
understand that this goal is achieved through a ‘combination of world-class support,
aggressive . pricing, and ‘extensive. product.and service offerings, Our. objectives align with
Sourcewell’'s .mission to help government, ‘education, :and nonprofits ‘work more efficiently, ‘and
we ‘accomplish -this by ‘remaining laser-focused on ‘customer ‘satisfaction: ‘every SHI employee
understands that ‘we ‘are here ‘because of ‘our customers and:will_remain ‘here ‘onlyas -long
as we continue to provide -extraordinary ‘products, ‘services, and customer satisfaction.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

9

What are your company’s expectations in the
event of an award?

SHI is genuinely excited about the opportunity to collaborate with Sourcewell and its memberst
We expect a phenomenally successful partnership, beginning with our immediate expectations
in the event of an award, which include

1. To support and advocate our Sourcewell partnership. Each team member from every

Public Sector vertical will support our partnership with Sourcewell and will advocate for the

contract with passion and vigor. Given our position in the Public Sector market, the size of
our sales force, and our experience with implementing and growing similar contracts, we are
confident that we can extend Sourcewell's reach not only in terms of revenue achieved, but
also in terms of the number of distinct members who use this contract.

2. To develop marketing materials and campaigns that articulate the value of the
Sourcewell-SHI partnership. As an example, we will employ our Business Development Team,
dedicated to the Public Sector Business Unit at SHI, to call all prospective customers and
detail our partnership promptly upon award.

3. To train our entire Public Sector sales and sales-support staff about Sourcewell and its
members. This training will include contract terms and methodology, pricing parameters, and
the value that Sourcewell provides to its Members.

4, To connect immediately with current Sourcewell Members, introduce SHI, and listen to
Members’ needs. Our introduction will ensure that each Member's dedicated Account Team is
familiar with and accessible to them, in addition to educating Members on the value we
provide. We will work with each Member to understand their business preferences (specific
information on a quote, reporting requirements, invoicing/billing requirements, and the like).
And we will offer webinars on various topics including:

. Getting to know SHI;

. SHl.com (eProcurement intro);
. SHI's Service Capabilities;

. Microsoft Volume Licensing.

5. Finally, to create a dedicated Sourcewell online catalogue that displays the contracted
pricing and any additional information that Sourcewell deems important. We wifl work with
Sourcewell Members to customize their site, adding reporting and punch-out capabilities
specific to that member, when needed.

We recognize why cooperative contract usage is on the rise, and we realize the value of
having strategic partners in this space.

Sourcewell can expect that SHI sets ourselves apart from organizations similar to us in that
we will collaborate with only a few select Consortia partners; in fact, we intentionally keep the
number of Consortia partners strategically small to provide proactive support to Consortia
members, rather than attaining many partnerships and diffusing ourselves reactively.

If awarded, we bring to this new contract both a deep desire to partner with Sourcewell and
fresh, innovative perspectives for your Members. We expect the transition to a new
partnership will be seamless, and we will assist in that transition by supporting Sourcewell
members personally, starting with our Senior Director of Public Sector, Denise Verdicchio.
Denise is committed to the success of our partnership from day one of an award, and she
will dedicate her energy to making our Sourcewell partnership a thriving one. Denise has
demanstrated that her leadership and teamwork create success: for example, with our most
recent consortia contract award, under her leadership, our Public Sector Team grew the
contract to over $100M in the first year.

In short, our expectations are bold, and they are also achievable. Our SHI team is flexible
and agile, and we are committed to providing Sourcewell's members an extraordinary
experience, with a purpose and a passion, that is incomparable.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

10

Demonstrate your-financial strength -and ‘stability
with ‘meaningful data. This could include -such
items as financial statements, ‘SEC filings, credit
and bond ‘ratings, letters of credit, -and detailed
reference letters. ' Upload ‘supporting -documents
(as applicable) .in the .document upload section of
your -response.

With over 4,200 :employees worldwide, SHI is proud to be the largest Woman/Minority -owned
business in - North: America. ' We .maintain -35+ ‘offices in North America, :EMEA, ‘and “Asia in
addition  to ‘our ‘Integration Center, Solution :Lab, ‘and Executive Briefing Center, ‘which are
located ‘at our -headquarters .in ‘New Jersey, In 2018, SHI reached $10B 'in revenue (one year
ahead of ‘our-goal) and ‘set the ‘stage for continued -exponential . growth.

The ‘SHI .Public :Sector unit made ‘up :$2.2B -of SHI's ‘overall sales last year -and was
recognized ‘as ‘the #1::business ‘unit -for. 2018, with ‘an astounding 25% increase over 2017.
While - this - pastyear was one of the largest ‘growth years, SHI's. Public ‘Sector has grown
consistently ‘over.the ‘last 30 years. In combination with ‘our ‘articulated -Purpose ‘and Passion,
this ‘growth .stems_froma_laser focus on -customer. service, ‘dedicated and -tenured leadership,
world-class Account Executives ‘(who_live :and ‘work :in ‘the .communities they serve),-and a
broad: spectrum ‘of ‘customers ‘and partners. In.other words, we recognize the .vitality ‘of -our
community, and: our. financial ‘strength -and :stability are -a ‘direct -result ‘of our .community
approach.

Since SHI ' is a privately-owned ‘company -with ‘no bank debt, ‘we ‘are ‘nimble -and able to
reinvest in our. business with ‘integrity :and in a ‘way that aligns with :Sourcewell's ‘'values -and
its :Members’ needs.. SHI continues to invest in .new -infrastructure, ‘most ‘recently ‘with :a brand-
new Integration’ Center -that will ‘open.in Q4:2019. We -also made significant ‘investments :in
hiring ‘more resources .— the people ‘with whom Sourcewell Members -will 'engage. in 2018, for
example, we brought ‘on 150 additional Field Solutions Engineers ‘and Professional Services
Executives: for.a total ‘of 550 customer-facing -technical - experts ‘who support :our-Account
Executives.

Our financial strength-and: stability is :predicated - on -our-staunch ‘affiliations : within ‘our
communities ‘'~ ‘our- relationships with customers, partners, OEMs, ‘and our own .SHI
colleagues.

We  have -included ‘our- 2 ‘years ‘of ‘audited financials .in the upload section ‘for ‘your review. and
to :demonstrate . our -strength -and_ stability.

11

What is your US market share for the solutions
that you are proposing?

Overall Market Share based on Fortune 100, 500 & 1000

. 680% of the Fortune 100 use SHI for primary IT Products (Software & Hardware)
. 40% of the Fortune 500 use SHI for primary IT Products (Software & Hardware)
. 30% of the Fortune 1000 use SHI for primary IT Products (Software & Hardware)

SHI Overall Product Mix

. 60% is be considered Software, Subscriptions, and Cloud based Sales

. 40% is be considered Hardware, Peripherals and Accessories — Inciuding categories of
Devices, Servers, Storage, Networking

Market Share Indicators for Software

SHI is considered the leading Reseller Partner for many of the Top Software Publishers such
as Microsoft, Adobe, Symantec/Veritas, McAfee (Intel Security), and others. We estimate that
20-25% of revenue with these partners as representative of their Partner Sales. This number
does not include Sales that Software Publishers conduct directly with the end-customer.

Market Share Indicators for Hardware

OEM direct sales to the end-customer typically represents a larger percentage of the
business; therefore our overall Market Share will be lower, estimated in the 5-10% range.

This number, however, still makes SHI one of the largest Hardware Resellers in North America.

What is your: Canadian market share, ‘if any?

SHI's ‘Canadian Market :Share .is 5-10%, ‘and ‘we provide more detailed information about our
Canadian ‘resources in -our. response -to.Question 42.

Has your business ever petitioned for bankruptcy
protection? If so, explain in detail.

In our 30-year history, SHI has never petitioned for bankruptcy protection. We are a privately
held company and currently have no debt.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

14

How is -your organization ‘best described: is it a
manufacturer, ‘a distributor/dealer/reselier, ‘or.‘a
service provider? - Answer -whichever -question
(either -a) .or.'b) just below) ‘best -applies to your
organization.

a) If your company -is ‘best described as a
distributar/dealer/reseller. (or- similar . entity),
provide your -written -authorization to act as.a
distributor/dealer/reselier -for the manufacturer -of
the products -proposed:in -this :RFP. If :applicable,
is ‘your-dealer network -independent .or.company
owned?

b) If your .company -is -best described as a
manufacturer:or.service -provider, describe :your
relationship . with -your :sales:and ‘service -force ‘and
with 'your dealer:network in delivering the
products and -services proposed in this .RFP. Are
these individuals your employees, ‘or -the
employees -of  a third ‘party?

SHI is -best described as an Information Technology Value-Added Reseller, providing a total
solution ‘to information ‘technology acquisitions ‘by .providing :muiti-vendor. hardware and
software :along with significant services.

As we-mention throughout 'this ‘proposal, -one of .our greatest strengths :is -our ability to -offer
customers :tremendous -depth: and ‘breadth -in .choosing 'products :(hardware, software, -Cloud) .in
conjunction ‘with a wide range of services = in.short, we -provide :full ‘1T solutions, ‘and -our
focus “aligns with :Sourcewell's mission: to build: valued relationships ‘and .to ‘deliver.innovative
solutions :with -integrity :and :respect to Members’ needs ‘and ‘wants.

We . understand: that ‘Sourcewell's ‘goalis to. identify -atrusted procurement partner that can
assist 'in helping you ‘achieve -your-missionof 'saving time.and ‘money for:your Members.
Whether ‘working ‘on large campus-wide -projects like ‘a.one-on-one initiative, a ‘Network
Refresh -for ‘anytime/anywhere ‘accessibility, - Unified -‘Communications, Modemnizing 'Legacy
Systems, “or-providing -a .customer-first ‘experience ‘with day-to-day '{T ‘procurement transactions,
SHI has ‘both the resources and the ‘experience to :execute seamlessly for your Members ‘and
to exceed their -expectations.

Our approach is centered .on -extraordinary ‘quality -and ‘overall value. ‘We strive to provide the
highest level of :support and services every day of the year, and we will deliver the ‘most
personalized .touch ‘to.the ‘end-user computing -enterprise :for:all :Sourcewell .members.:We
recagnize that: Sourcewell is looking for:their ‘Vendor to " provide:

. Arobust presence that-can fully ‘support Members': technology ‘needs, saving them -both
time :and:.money.

. A trusted advisor/consultant who ‘can -help. Members :support the :entire :lifecycle -of -an
asset -and ‘ensure - successful :implementation at-each phase.

. A strong relationship with :industry :partners.

. An ‘actionable strategy ‘to educate :potential members:on ‘the value ‘of Sourcewell in order
to .gain -increased -membership.

We ‘are_well positioned to deliver on ‘these 'goals -because .of .our exemplary relationships ‘with
our. sales/service ‘force ‘and with ‘our dealer network. Our experience .in supporting contracts -of
similar. ‘size ‘and. scope .is ‘unparalleled, ‘and we have ‘a.proven formula to onboard and
optimize contracts.

Our Public ‘Sector team .is -ready. to implement .this “contract .for :Sourcewell; -and ‘we ‘are
committed to expanding our team dedicated ‘to :Public:Sectorentities to ensure ‘we meet (and
exceed!) ‘all requirements -of .the contract. With ‘the :largest -and. most ‘highly-certified sales
support teamin_the .industry, SHI will ‘act as a loyal consuitant to your Members.

Working ‘from -a :customer-centric foundation, ‘we ‘have ‘organized ‘our:support teams. to ‘include
solution-based: support, ‘including specific, presales -technical ‘expertise -around Datacenter,
Mobility, :Backup/Recovery, -DR, Cybersecurity, - Virtualization, and :more. -These ‘teams 'provide
vendor-neutral -advisement ‘and .use ' their breadth of ‘experience to help tailor conversations
that ‘are -optimal for..each -Member's specific_environment.

SHJ has the ‘experience -and vendor partnerships .in place to bring phenomenal value to
Sourcewell .and your members. ‘All of ‘the leading -manufacturers have established : SHI -as :an
authorized partner,” and ‘we .can provide 'LOAs .immediately. upon request.  Furthermore, . SHi
has ‘a diverse ‘partner-ecosystem, ‘supporting over. 15,000 ‘unique Publishers -and
Manufacturers,

Sourcewell can-feel confident that your Members will benefit from -our -aggressive -pricing ‘and
exceptional value. A ‘dedicated ‘approach to the - Public ‘Sector business :for the last twenty
years - has ‘helped us -to create. solutions . that -are :specific to the ‘unique needs of State, Local;
and ‘Education ‘customers -across ‘North:-America.” SHI ‘will :‘work with: each :Sourcewell Member
collaboratively, with ‘purpose ‘and passion, ‘and:with -a ‘goal -of “continuous improvement,”

We ‘are fully ‘committed to:the long-term success of Sourcewell -and your-Members, ‘and we
appreciate the :opportunity :to ‘bring 1T 'solutions ‘to your-current -and : future members.

15

If applicable, provide a detailed explanation
outlining the licenses and certifications that are
both required to be held, and actually held, by
your organization (including third parties and
subcontractors that you use) in pursuit of the
business contemplated by this RFP.

Among the thousands of licenses and certifications available within the IT industry, SHI hoids
a comprehensive number relevant to the business articulated for Sourcewell’s RFP: Cloud
Services, Microsoft, Intel, Dell, Symantec, McAfee, IBM, HP, Apple, VMware, Red Hat, Tenable,
Citrix, AWS — across all platforms and solutions, our teams stay current with all licenses and
certifications made available by providers.

We have included a total number of certifications from some of our larger partners and have
included a sampling of types of certifications in response to question 69 in our response.

Acronis — 5 Certifications
Adobe - 7 Certifications
AGOEA -~ 1 Certifications
AirWatch - 2 Certifications

APC - 12 Certifications
Apple - 17 Certifications
Arbor - 4 Certifications
Aruba - 3 Certifications

Avaya - 12 Certifications




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793
Blue Coat Systems - 3 Certifications
Biuebeam - 7 Certifications
Bomgar - 3 Certifications
Business Objects — 11 Certifications
CA - 34 Certifications
Check Point — 12 Certifications
Cisco - 44 Certifications
Citrix - 88 Certifications
CIW - 1 Certifications
Commvaulit — 67 Certifications
Compelient — 5 Certifications
CompTIA — 35 Certifications
CradlePoint — 2 Certifications
DataCore ~ 1 Certifications
Dell — 92 Certifications
Dell EMC - 44 Certifications
D-Link- 4 Certifications
Domino — 1 Certifications
EMC -~ 54 Certifications
Emulex - 1 Certifications
ESET - 3 Certifications
Exin - 2 Certifications
F5 — 8 Certifications
HDS (Hitachi Data Systems) — 4 Certifications
HP — 201 Certifications
HPE - 327 Certifications
IBM — 174 Certifications
IBM hardware — 11 Certifications
Imation/Nexsan ~ 4 Certifications
ISC2 ~ 10 Certifications *
ITIiL - 5 Certifications
Ixia — 3 Certifications
Juniper - 28 Certifications
LanDesk - 10 Certifications
Lenovo - 26 Certifications
LogRhythm - 3 Certifications
McAfee - 92 Certifications
Mellanox - 2 Certifications
Metastorm - 1 Certification
Microsoft - 1090 Certifications
Motorola - 8 Certifications
MS0616813816 - 1 Certification
NetApp - 26 Certifications
NetlQ - 6 Certifications
Nimble - 7 Certifications
Novell - 11 Certifications
Nutanix - 7 Certtifications
Oracle - 340 Certifications
Other - 30 Certifications
Polycom - 14 Certifications
ProCurve - 6 Certifications
Proofpoint - 3 Certifications
Pure - 5 Certifications
Qiogic - 5 Certifications
Quantum - 2 Certtifications
Quest Software - 1 Certification
Red Hat - 18 Certifications
RIM - 1 Certification
RSA - 33 Certifications
SANS.ORG - 1 Certification
Scale Computing - 1 Certification
ScriptLogic - 2 Certifications
Secure Computing / McAfee - 2 Certifications
Security Horizon - 2 Certifications
Simplivity - 5 Certifications
Sonicwall - 2 Certifications
Splunk - 6 Certifications
Sun Microsystems - 65 Certifications
Symantec - 142 Certifications
Tegile - 2 Certifications
Tintri 4 Certifications
Trend Micro 5 Certifications
Veeam 10 Certifications
Vision Solutions 1 Certification
VMware 300 Certifications
Watchguard 1 Certification
Websense 18 Certifications




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

subcategories of solutions. List subcategory titles
that best describe your products and services.

16 Provide -all “Suspension or-Disbarment” SHI -has ‘not been suspended ‘or disbarred on any .contracts ‘similar-to ‘what ‘is -being
information. that has applied to your organization - |requested by Sourcewell.
during the ‘past ten years.

17 Within this RFP category there may be Today, we continue to fine-tune our products and services to meet the needs of our

customers and the ever-changing, broad technology fandscape. Our catalogue of products
continues to grow and change in response to technological demands and customer needs.

SHI categorizes the technology landscape and our capabilities into three broad segments: End-
User, Datacenter, and Security. Within each of these segments are practices; for instance,

the End-User Segment is comprised of Mobility, Desktop, Unified Communications, Devices,
Peripherals, and Accessories.

At the next level are the Solutions that reside within each practice. For example, within the
Mobility practice, Unified Endpoint Management, Enterprise Mobility Management, Mobile App
Management, Mobile Device Management, and Enterprise File Sharing exist.

Another example inciudes the Solutions that reside under the Devices, Peripherals, and
Accessories practice; these include Operating System, Desktop, Laptop, Tablet, Thin Client,
Smart Phone, Video Surveillance, Printing and Imaging, Digital Signage, and Peripherals.

The last piece of this conversation centers on Services for each Solution. These Services
include Advisory Assessments, Solution Design, Proof of Concept, Implementation, Staff
Augmentation, Training, Project Management, and Managed Services.

Due to the size of SHP's Solutions Directory, it would be cumbersome to include all of the
granular categories here, as our categorization and capabilities are extensive. But Sourcewell
can be confident knowing that SHI has the capability to support its Members and to facilitate
the right solution for each Member's environment at an extraordinary value.

Should Sourcewell wish to discuss our Solutions Directory in greater detail, we will gladly
schedule a call to articulate the comprehensive practice and solution areas we provide.

Industry Recognition & Marketplace Success

Line

18

Item

Question

Response*

Describe any relevant industry awards or
recognition that your company has received in
the past five years

Both clients and vendors have recognized SHI generously over the last five years for our
exceptional quality, service, and partnerships. We are truly humbled by these accolades and
by the recognition that has resulted from our Purpose and Passion.

2019 Awards

. Microsoft US Surface Transformation Reseller of the Year

. Microsoft Partner of the Year Award (MSUS Awards): Modern Workplace, Modern
Desktop Award

. Ranked 10th on CRN's 2019 Solution Provider 500

. Dell Technologies Transformational Partner of the Year

. SOPHOS Cloud Partner of the year

. Intel Partner of the Year for Vertical Solutions: Client Solution - National Solution Provider
. Intel Partner of the Year for Marketing: Training for Results - Sales

. CRN's 2019 Managed Service Provider 500 - Elite 150 Category

. Forbes Best Employers for Diversity 2019

. Adobe Digital Media Worldwide Partner of the Year

2018 Awards

. VMware Partner Innovation Award: Transform Networking & Security

. VVMware Partner Innovation Award: Partner of the Year — Americas

. VMware Partner Innovation Award: VMware Cloud on AWS Solution ~ Americas
. Panasas Accelerate Newcomer Partner of the Year 2018

. Citrix Networking Partner of the Year

. CloudHealth North America Partner of the Year

. Cisco US Commercial POY - South Area

. Cisco Capital PQY - South Area

. Cisco US Commercial POY - West Area

. Cisco Advanced Collaboration Partner of the Year

. Austin American-Statesman Top Workplaces

. RSA North American SecurlD® Suite Partner of the Year

. Pure Storage Disruptor of the Year Partner Award

. Partner of the Year - Municipal Information Systems Association (MISA) of Ontario
. Ranked 8th on CRN's 2018 Solution Provider 500

. MSI Qutstanding Channel Partner Award

. Intel Partner of the Year PC Client Solution Award

2017 Awards
. VMware Americas Marketing Partner of the Year
. VMware Giobal Marketing Partner of the Year

. Cradlepoint 2017 NSP Growth Partner of the Year




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

. Ribbon Communications North America Partner of the Year Award
. Fortinet North America Fabric Partner of the Year Award

. Citrix Sales Acceleration Award

. McAfee Partner of the Year

. Cisco Commercial Partner of the Year 2017

. Cisco Commercial Territory Partner of the Year 2017

. SHI Achieves AWS Managed Service Partner Status - 2017

. Citi Lean Partner Award

. Microsoft US Public Sector 2017 Partner of The Year

. HP U.S. Print Hardware National Solution Provider of the Year

. Forbes America's Best Midsize Employers 2017

. Hewlett Packard Enterprise Global Financial Services Partner of the Year 2017
. Microsoft Top Partner Windows Commercial Revenue 2017

. Nutanix Velocity Partner of the Year

. Ranked 8th on CRN's 2017 Solution Provider 500

. SAP Ariba Supplier of the Year

. Microsoft's SLG Channel Partner of the Year

2016 Awards

. Intalere Supplier Growth Leader - 20 Percent Club

. Aflac Partner of the Year Award 2016 - Diversity

. Austin American-Statesman Top Workplaces 2016 - SHI International Corp.
. Breakaway Partner 2016 - U.S. National

. Citrix Enterprise Partner of the Year 2016

. Cohesity National Partner of the Year 2016

. CRN Tech Elite 250

. Forbes America's Largest Private Companies 2016

. Forbes America's Best Employers 2016

. Fortinet North American Enhanced Technology Partner of the Year 2016
. Hewlett Packard Enterprise North America Financial Services Partner of the Year 2016
. HP Managed Print Services Best in Class Partner Award 2016

. Intel Security North America Reseller MVP

. Intel Security Partner of the Year- United States

. Meraki Elevate Partner of the Year 2016 - US Central Region

. MES XCellence 2016- Best Solution Provider

. Microsoft FY16 Top Windows Client Commercial Revenue Partner

. Microsoft FY16 US NASPO Top Partner

. Microsoft Operational Excellence Award

. Nutanix Momentum Award

. Ranked 13th on CRN's 2016 Solution Provider 500

. Sophos Top Performer National Americas 2016

. Veritas Technologies AMS Partner of the Year 2016

2015 Awards

. 2015 Adobe Americas Reseller of the Year

. 2015 CRN Triple Crown Award Recipient

. 2015 F5 Growth Partner of the Year

. 2015 Kaspersky National Partner of the Year

. Amerinet Diversity Supplier of the Year

. Austin American-Statesman Top Workplaces 2015 - SHI International Corp.

. Autodesk - Partner of the Year 2015

. Autodesk Volume Channel Partner of the Year

. Citrix NA Partner of the Year 2015 - Mid-Market

. Citrix NA Partner of the Year 2015 - SMB

. Dell Healthcare Partner of the Year

. ESET Most Valuable Partner (MVP) 2015

. Fortinet 2015 United States Enhanced Technology Partner of the Year

. NJBIZ's #1 Top Women-Owned Business

. Ranked 12th on CRN's 2015 Solution Provider 500

. Raytheon-Websense Growth Reseller of the Year (NA)

. Raytheon-Websense Net New Customer Acquisition Reseller of the Year (NA)
. Red Hat North American Commercial High Volume Partner of the Year

. SHI Canada ranks #14 out of Top 100 Solution Providers

. Sophos Top Performer North America

. Southern California MSDC Supplier of the Year Winners Circle

. Southwest Minority Supplier Development Council Class IV Supplier of the Year
. US National Commercial Partner of the Year

. US South Region Meraki Partner of the Year

. Veeam Corporate Reseller of the Year 2015

. VMware Americas Renewals Partner of the Year and vCloud Air Partner of the Year
. VMware Mobility Partner of the Year - Global and Regional

2014 Awards

. 2014 LAR of the Year, North America

. 2014 Microsoft Partner of the Year Award Education

. 2014 VMware Solutions Partner of the Year

. Americas Region VMware Solution Provider Partner of the Year Award
. arcserve LAR of the Year

. Autodesk Top Volume Channel Partner




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

. Blue Cross Blue Shield of Michigan LifeSecure Diverse Supplier Achievement Award

. Cisco Meraki Partner of the Year, Americas

. Cisco New Break Away Partner of the Year, Americas

. GMIS International Partner Award - Diamond Level

. HP PartnerOne Award for Global Reseller of the Year

. McAfee Corporate Reseller of the Year 2014, North America

. Microsoft Operational Excellence Award - Eleventh consecutive year and thirteenth time
overall: 2014, 2013, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006, 2005, 2004, 2000 & 1999
. NJBIZ's #1 Top Minority-Owned Business

. NJBIZ's #1 Top Women-Owned Business

. NJBIZ's #3 Top Privately Held Company

. Ranked 15th on CRN's 2014 Solution Provider 500

. SolarWinds' 2014 Partner of the Year Award

. Sophos Top Performing Partner 2014 - Fifth consecutive year

. Thai Lee, SHI President and CEO, named to CRN's Women of the Channel Power 50
Solution Providers

19 What percentage of ‘your: sales are to the 12018 =~ 14%
governmental sector -in the past three years 2017-:13% *
2016-15%
20 What percentage of your sales are to the 2018 — 6%
education sector in the past three years 2017 — 6% *
2016 — 3%
21 List ‘any ‘state ‘or .cooperative :purchasing SHI has included sales 'volume for our top ‘5 ‘contracts over the ‘last 3 years. In addition to
contracts .that :you hold. ‘What is the -annual the  information :we've provided ‘here, ‘a-full list: of ‘our-contracts ‘by state can be found:at:
sales -volume for-each of ‘these ‘contracts -over
the past three years? https:/Mww.shi.com/Contract/PSContract/ContractHome

NASPO . Software :Contract
. 2016~ -$176 -Million
. 2017 --$163 Million
. 2018 ~.302 Million

State ‘Microsoft -Software :Contract
. 2016 - $39 :Million
. 2017 ---$188Million
. 2018 - -$104 Million

State  Microsoft . Software Contract
. 2016~ $133 Million

. 2017:--$149 -Million

. 2018 '~-$40 Million

State ' Software .Contract
. 2016 - $95 ‘Million
. 2017 :~--$108 Million
. 2018 ~$117. Million

GSA

. 2016 - '$64 ‘Million
. 2017:--$85 Million
. 2018.-$84 :Million

22 List any GSA contracts that you hold. What is GSA Contract number GS-35F-0111K
the annual sales volume for each of these

contracts over the past three years? 2018 - $82M
2017 - $85M
2016 - $64M

References/Testimonials

Line ltem 23.

Contact Name * , Phohe Number *
Houston ISD Chris Stroupe — Sr. Platform Admin. 713-556-5131 *
WA State Dept of Enterprise Elena McGrew. — Enterprise Contract 360-407-3957 *
City of New York John Gioia —~ Chief Contracting Officer 718-403-8503 *
VA-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES AG Gregq  Scearce - ‘Strategic Sourcing Specialist 804-416-6166




DocuSign Envelope ID: 9572A8C3-61C7-4821-BB68-037BDD3C3793

Top Five Government or Education Customers

Line Item 24, Provide a list of your top five government, education, or non-profit customers (entity name is optional), including entity type, the
state or province the entity is located in, scope of the project(s), size of transaction(s), and dollar volumes from the past three years.

Not Required Government Kentucky - KY All IT products and services $16-31.7M $59,310,742
Not Required Government New York - NY Al IT :products ‘and ‘services $10-34M $40,512,256
Not Required Government Louisiana - LA All IT products and services $33-31.1M $40,338,113
Not ‘Required Government New York - NY. AlLIT -products -and :services $11-31M $30,228,675
Not Required Education Texas - TX All IT products and services $10-$1.6M $29,986,441

Ability to Sell and Deliver Service Nationwide

Describe your compa